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Group Structure

AEERREHE
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Dear SHAREHOLDERS:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”)
of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). | am glad to
present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 (the “reporting period”).

RESULTS

The Group has recorded revenue of approximately RMB1,286,683,000
for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: RMB1,082,110,000),
which represents an increase of 18.9% from the revenue of 2009.
Profit attributable to owners of the parent was approximately
RMB166,840,000 (2009: RMB118,388,000), which was an increase
of 40.9% from 2009. The increase in revenue was mainly due to
the increase in sales of intermediates and bulk medicines by 27.9%
compared with the corresponding of last year. The sales of solid-
dosage-forms (mainly system specific medicines) increased by 43.9%
compared with the corresponding of last year.

Also, from the strategic development perspective, the Group has
been enhancing the market penetration actions in the field of
cardiovascular system specific medicines and expanding the scale
effect. Therefore, the market share for system specific medicines was
increased. The growth of the system specific medicines optimized our
product portfolio in 2010. In addition, the Group insists on utilizing
the tight cost-control principle of corporate finance. The net cash
flows from operating activities was RMB252,344,000 in 2010 (2009:
RMB1838,987,000), which was an increase of 81.6%. Hence, for the
year ended 31 December 2010, under the condition of maintaining
a stable dividend payout policy, almost all the development projects
have been funded by the Group’s own sufficient internal capital
resources.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.078
per share for the year ended 31 December 2010, amounting to the
total sum of approximately HK$62,169,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB52,472,000), to the shareholders whose names listed in the
registers of members as of Friday, 6 May 2011 subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming 2011 Annual General Meeting
(the “2011 AGM”). Taking into consideration the interim dividend of
HK$0.02 per share, the total annual dividend distributed for the year
is HK$0.098 per share. The dividend payout ratio is approximately
39.7%.
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ERBE

OVERVIEW OF 2010

The rapid economic growth during the first decade of the 21st
century and the exposure of a global financial crisis are redrawing the
boundaries of China’s business landscape. Globalization determines
regional economic, social, and business trends, which inevitably
shape competition among firms. Within the rapidly changing business
environment, predicting and anticipating major trends and their
impacts can help firms succeed by riding the current rather than
swimming against it. The top management team’s criteria in fixing and
balancing the key products portfolios do reflect the strategic goals
and visions of the enterprise.

As the latest China National Five-Year Strategic Plan indicates, the
economic growth engine is domestic consumption rather than reliance
on international exports. In order to fulfill this strategic objective, the
keys are national innovation capability, institutional protection for
new products and patents, and healthcare coverage for all Chinese
citizens. Hence, the central government of China announced a
stream of healthcare reform policies. The goal of healthcare reform
is very substantial and unprecedented: To establish a basic national
healthcare system capable of covering 1.3 billion Chinese safely,
effectively, and economically. Therefore, these healthcare reform
procedures are influencing all aspects of healthcare, including but not
limited to insurance, basic healthcare, hospital administration, drugs,
and public policy of healthcare management.

In summary, we believe that firms need to design and deploy business
portfolios in order to compete in a high-growth pharmaceutical
market. In fact, many pharmaceutical firms have been competing
in the Chinese pharmaceutical sector. Multinational enterprises are
enhancing their market penetration in China, as well as establishing
research and development centers for the purposes of (internal)
clinical trials. Newcomer domestic firms in China, with the attention
of national competitors, are launching new generations of drugs and
incrementally constructing the organizational capabilities to strengthen
their business landscape in Asia and the world.

We thoroughly understand the co-existing condition of domestic
newcomers and multinational enterprises, and the hyper-competition
brought by these firms. We are exploring the development model of
domestic newcomers, co-developing new products with alliances,
and exploiting new business models for the purpose of growing and
sustaining our performance in China and Asia Pacific.
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Indeed, during the Group’s history, we have continually seized
opportunities to penetrate markets in high-growth, cannibalized
market segments. Based on accumulated business logic and many
years’ experience in China’s pharmaceutical market, the Board
responds to new industry trends and changes with a rapid and flexible
approach. The Group also control the cost of manufacturing to
enhance our competitive advantages and to sustain the dynamics for
future development.

PROSPECTS

Years of rapid growth and globalization are redefining the boundaries
of the pharmaceutical firms that are competing in China. A new
classification is required to depict this newly emerging, competitive
landscape. Currently, some multinational enterprises are fully involved
in the domestic competition among Chinese firms; they compete
directly with hundreds of domestic players for identical consumers.
The capital intensive state-owned enterprises in China, in contrast, are
expanding their production capabilities and market share.

In the meantime, the State Food and Drug Administration (SFDA) of
China is going to refer to the Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)
of the World Health Organization as the benchmark of China’s
GMP. China’s SFDA will also follow the GMP standards set by the
USA and EU in order to upgrade China’s GMP to the cutting edge
of global standards. From the perspective of the SFDA, this is one
major force to push domestic pharmaceutical firms to compete in
the global arena. Hence, the current small and mid-sized firms with
old technologies and limited resources will face the stress of being
eliminated in the near future.

Therefore, Directors believe that the Group will continuously pursue
flexible future development directions. Attention to cost, speed to
market, and decision-making of capital allocations can still reap
rewards and enhance our R&D productivity. In 2011, the Board will
consider the agenda of research and development, new product
marketing plans, and optimization of resource allocations as first
priorities. In this way, we can create value and maintain sustainability
for all the shareholders.
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ERW|E

HUMAN RESOURCES EEAS

As always, the Board believes that the direction of building any ZELR  BEEFERAEELCENERAMENA
pharmaceutical enterprise should be based on cutting-edge BEEREMD o HME— R EMAMK AL S|
knowledge and technology. We have devoted our efforts to recruiting MBENE - B BRAEATRERMLEENTE
and promoting top talent. We believe that human resources are the ENEEEENT —SAHFEERNBAMNE - &
most valuable intangible assets of the Group and the essential driving Bl#EE  UREWE BHIEN oHEEF
force for the sustainable development of the Group. | would like to Bl & mREREHE

take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to my colleagues

spread across China for their dedicated performance and diligence.

Li Kei Ling T=H®
Chairman *E
Hong Kong, 14 March 2011 BE —ET——F=A+WH
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BUSINESS REVIEW
PRODUCTION & SALES OPERATION

In the second half of 2010, in view of continuous launching of
new products and also facilitating the management assessing to
business performance and organizing resources allocation, the
Group has grouped the products into 2 main reportable segments,
1) intermediates & bulk medicines and 2) finished drugs respectively.
Intermediates & bulk medicines include all the Group’s chemical
and pharmaceutical intermediates and bulk medicines. Finished
drugs include all the Group’s antibiotic and non-antibiotic finished
preparations with dosage forms of powder for injection and
solid-dosage-form etc. Currently, all the Group’s system specific
medicines are solid-dosage-form in the non-antibiotic finished
preparations segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the production and sales
volume of intermediates and bulk medicines of the Group increased
by 10.1% and 27.9% respectively as compared to the corresponding
period of 2009. For the finished drugs, the production and sales
volume of powder for injection decreased by 24.4% and 21.7%
respectively as compared to the corresponding period of last year.
The production and sales volume of solid-dosage-forms increased
by 19.0% and 29.4% respectively as compared to the corresponding
period of last year. The main products such as anti-infective
medicines “Xianshu” (5t#7)(Cefoperazone Sodium and Sulbactam
Sodium for Injection), “Xiankang” (5£F%) (Cefepime Hydrochlorde
for injection), and system specific medicines including “Anneizhen”
(ZWE) (Amlodipine Besylate Tablets), “Anneixi” (Z A %) (Losartan
Potassium and Hydrochlorothiazide Tablets), “Anneigiang” (% AI58)
(Telmisartan Tablets), “Xikewei”(FaR] &) (Cetirizine Hydrochloride
Tablets), “Leiyide” (& %1E) (Entecavir Dispersible Tablets)etc
continued positive growth in sales. Export sales, approximately
RMB214,790,000 equivalent to 16.7% of turnover, further increased
by 115.5% as compared to the corresponding period of last year.

DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PRODUCTS

In 2010, the Group obtained 3 production permits for Lansoproazole
Tablets (BBZ=H¥ ), Entecavir Bulk Medicines and Dispersible
Tablets (BB RERE XD ES) from the State Food and Drug
Administration, received 28 supplemental production permits for 16
products, 82 re-registered production permits for 37 products and
1 clinical permit. 4 new products had been applied for production
permits (including 3 antibiotic products and 1 system specific
medicine for cardiovascular system). 5 products were under clinical
trials.
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2010 HONOURABLE RECOGNITIONS

1)  The Group’s products, namely Cefoperazone Sodium for injection
and its bulk medicine, Cefoperazone Sodium and Sulbactam
Sodium for injection and its bulk medicine and Cefotaxime
Sodium for injection and its bulk medicine, have been recognized
as the new technology products of Jiangsu Province by Jiangsu
Province Sci-tech Department in 2010.

2)  Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was evaluated as
“AAA” credit rating by Jiangsu Branch of China Chengxin Credit
Management Co., Ltd. in May 2010.

3) According to the information released at the 27th National
Pharmaceutical Industry Annual Information Meeting (&
BRI T 2B E) held in August 2010, Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was listed 78th in the National
Pharmaceutical Enterprise Ranking (EEE# T HEPEHR)
announced in “Statistics Yearbook of Chinese Medicine and
Pharmacy” ( (Bl & 2455 ) ) of 2009.

4) In December 2010, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
was recognized as A-level tax credit rating unit (AZ AT 12 S 4%
B {7) by Suzhou taxation bureau at the national and local levels
(BRI T BIZK K3t 5 B 75 ).

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS FOR THE EXPANSION OF
PRODUCTION FACILITIES

Pharmaceutical Intermediates

Phase Il of the construction project in Dawnrays (Nantong)
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. had been
proceeding as planned.

Bulk Medicines

The new bulk medicines workshop of Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. completed equipment installing and
commissioning, and started trial production. It is planned to start
using in the first half of 2011.

The non-cephalosporin bulk medicines workshop of Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Hedong Industrial Park phase | construction
project progressed into the stage of equipment installation and
commissioning while construction of the supporting utility works
started.

Pharmaceutical Preparations
Design works for the non-cephalosporin solid-dosage-forms

workshop in Hedong Industrial Park of Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. had been completed.
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CHANGE NAME OF SUZHOU DAWNRAYS CHEMICAL CO., LTD.

Suzhou Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd. was approved to change the
name to Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology
Co., Ltd. in October 2010. The scope of business has been changed
from a pharmaceutical and chemical raw material producer to a
technological innovative enterprise focused on pharmaceuticals
R&D and amplified test production by industrial manufacturing
requirements, providing strong support for the Group’s innovative
development.

VOLUNTARY WINDING-UP OF SHANGHAI DAWNRAYS
CHEMICAL CO., LTD.

In February 2010, the Shanghai Jiading District People’s Government
officially approved the resolution to voluntary liquidate and dissolve
Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd.. Its deregistration issues were
completed and the business was carried on by Dawnrays (Nantong)
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd.

OUTLOOK IN 2011

2011 is the year for China to achieve new medical reforms. A series
of policies were introduced by the end of 2010 to push forward the
accomplishment of the goals of medical reform phase by phase, and
such policies will continue in 2011. The above is primarily reflected in
the start of comprehensive implementation of essential drugs system,
further enhancement of the reform on payment methods for medical
care, stable pattern of hospital medication, encourage innovation
and pricing guide by good quality good price remain constant.
Implementation of the new edition of GMP will bring a new round of
consolidations and restructures and accelerate the process of the
integration of pharmaceutical industry. The Government will support
innovative R&D projects of key domains with various measures.
These policy factors are expected to have great impact on the
pharmaceutical economy of China. The management of Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical will proactively react according to the medical reform,
continue to develop by following the direction of “professionalism,
excellence, specialization, and innovation”, while further reinforcing
and expanding the market share of the Group’s products in the fields
of anti-infection, cardiovascular, anti-virus and allergy; speeding up
the construction of solid-dosage-forms workshop for system specific
medicines, so as to get prepared for the enhancement in production
capacity of system specific medicines, steadily push forward the R&D
process of new products and further improve the production quality of
the products.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has achieved
the revenue of approximately RMB1,286,683,000, equivalent to an
increase of 18.9% compared with the corresponding period of last
year. Gross profit was approximately RMB376,157,000, equivalent to
an increase of 14.7% compared with the corresponding period of last
year. Gross profit margin was 29.2% which was slightly decreased
from 30.3% as in the corresponding period of last year. The main
reason for the decrease in gross profit margin was the sales volume
of intermediates increased by 100.1% when compared with the
corresponding period of last year, however its cost of sales increased
by 10.6% when compared with the corresponding period of last
year, which was caused by the fluctuation of quality in 7ACA, and
reduced the overall gross profit margin. The sales volume and amount
of the system specific medicines under finished drugs continued
steady increase by 29.4% and 43.9% respectively compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

TABLE OF TURNOVER ANALYSIS

Bt % 12 B
HERER

HE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HLEE A£H2
FEEEH ARE1,286,683,0007T ¢ # £ F [ H
#K18.9% ° EFFEH A RYE376,157,0007T « 8 X
FRHIER14.7%  EFIER29.2% » WA F[FH
B30.3%RE AT - EFMETHRNFTZERALFME
ENHEEHEREFTRBERE100.1%  MEK AR
FATACAR E 2K 81 5| B A F R AR 1N10.6%
WMAETBEEENE : RETFHNRAEREHE
BERBTEER HEFERHEESEIIER
29.4% % 43.9% °

BXBEIN-RERED

12

PRODUCT TURNOVER (RMB’ 000) SALES BREAKDOWN (%)
Em EEB(ARE T 8 &t Bl(%)
2010 2009 Changes 2010 2009 Changes
—E-FF Z—IZTTNF gig —B-TF —TITNF 217
Intermediates and ik
Bulk Medicines [ 2 813,415 636,014 177,401 63.22 58.78 4.44
Finished Drugs i % 473,268 446,096 27,172 36.78 41.22 -4.44
Overall me 1,286,683 1,082,110 204,573 100.00 100.00 0.00
EXPENSES &

The total expenses incurred during the year decreased by
RMB4,761,000 making total of RMB176,423,000 compared with the
corresponding period of last year, equivalent to 13.7% of turnover
(2009: 16.7%). Total expenses decreased sharply were mainly due to
the Group had tight control in managing expenses while selling and
distribution expenses were not increased with the increase in sales
simultaneously.
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

For the year ended 31 December 2010, profit attributable to owner of
the parent amounted to approximately RMB166,840,000 equivalent to
an increase of 40.9% compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

ANALYSIS ON THE RETURN ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, net assets attributable to owners of the
parent were approximately RMB834,954,000. Net return on net
assets, which is defined as the profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year divided by net assets attributable to owners of
the parent, was 20.0% (2009: 16.6%). The current ratio and quick
ratio was 1.71 and 1.39 respectively. Turnover days for trade and
notes receivables was approximately 133 days. The turnover days for
inventory was approximately 73 days.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB210,975,000(as at 31 December
2009: RMB86,450,000). During the year, the net cash flows from
operating activities was approximately RMB252,344,000(2009:
RMB138,987,000). Net cash flows used in investing activities was
approximately RMB79,357,000 (2009: RMB60,396,000). Net cash
flows used in financing activities was approximately RMB46,379,000
(2009: RMB30,987,000).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has HK$60,000,000 short term
bank loans which are interest-bearing. As at 31 December 2010, the
debt ratio (defined as sum of bank advances for discounted bills plus
interest-bearing bank loans over total assets) of the Group was 3.6%
(as at 31 December 2009: 0.9%).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s bank loans are guaranteed by
corporate guarantee of the Company and some of its subsidiaries.
Besides, a subsidiary of the Group undertook to maintain fixed
deposits of not less than RMB49,700,000 throughout the loan period
of HK$56,000,000 bank loans. The fixed bank deposits carries
interest at market rate. In order to convert the floating rate bank loans
to a fixed annual interest rate, the Group entered into an interest
rate swap contract with a notional amount of HK$40,000,000 with a
bank. The purpose is to execute the Group’s financial management
requirement to exclude any risk of interest rate fluctuations of floating
interest rate loans for achieving the planned financial results.
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As at 31 December 2010, the Group had aggregate bank facilities
of approximately RMB827,012,000 (as at 31 December 2009:
RMB700,568,000).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s capital commitments
amounted to approximately RMB273,680,000 (as at 31 December
2009: RMB154,410,000), which mainly derived from the construction
of new workshops for non-cephalosporin bulk medicines and
solid-dosage-forms preparation in Hedong Industrial Park and the
construction of dangerous goods godown in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., the phase Il of plant construction (including
the construction of workshops for the intermediates of system specific
medicines) in Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd., the construction works for oral cephalosporin
intermediates workshop in Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co. Ltd. etc. The Group has sufficient financial and
internal resources to bear the capital expenditure.

Save as aforesaid disclosure, the Group had no significant external
investments or material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND TREASURY POLICIES

As the Group’s substantial business activities, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, the risk derived from the foreign exchange
to the Group is not high. The treasury policy of the Group is to
manage any risk of foreign exchange (if any) only if it will potentially
impose a significant impact on the Group. The Group continues to
observe the foreign exchange and interest rate market, and may
hedge against foreign currency risk with foreign exchange forward
contracts and interest rate risk with interest rate swap contracts if
necessary.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed 1,527 employees.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the total remuneration
was approximately RMB89,758,000 (2009: RMB83,165,000). The
Group regards human resources as the most valuable assets and
truly understands the importance of attracting and retaining high-
performance employees. The remuneration policy is generally based
on the references of market salary index and individual qualifications.
The Group provides its employees with other fringe benefits, including
defined contribution retirement schemes, share option scheme and
medical coverage. The Group also offers some of its employees
stationed in the PRC with dormitory accommodation.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no asset being pledged to
banks to obtain credit facilities (as at 31 December 2009: Nil).
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (as at 31 December 2009: Nil).

PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND EXPECTED
SOURCE OF FUNDING

Save for those disclosed above in connection with capital
commitments under the section “Liquidity and Financial Resources”,
the Group does not have any plan for material investments or
acquisition of capital assets.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year ended 31
December 2010 is set out in note 3 to the financial statement.

—ZT—T4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010

EEENWED T

BEEER

MN-Z—TFE+-_F=+—0 AEHEIEHEE
IR FRT UREBEEEE(R-_ZThF+=
B=+—8H:&) -

REEE

RIE-ZF+_A=1+—H FAEEA\ES KK
BEREMRZEEANFTRA=+—H:8) -

RREEARRERBAHRERIEF
BRERRBESRVBER| —SHMEAREAR
FXEAERPREEIN  AEEBMELEERNRKE
AKREFEXBABEREERS -

ZEEHR

AEEEE T —EF+_A=+—BLEFEZS
BERDTHN I B RMKRMES

BInRA (H8%) ABRAE DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis

15




Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) believes that corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). Good corporate
governance can safeguard the interests of all shareholders and
enhance corporate value. Therefore, the Board has adopted various
measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is
maintained.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code on CGP”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Based on specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that
all the Directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code, throughout the accounting period covered by the
2010 annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The management has been delegated the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in
this report.

On 9 July 2010, Mr. Sik Siu Kwan resigned from the office as an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo Tung
Sing Tony was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company effective from 1 October 2010. Save as disclosed
above, there was no other change in the composition of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

16 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ~ H328l%5 (28%) ARAR

Rin®a () BRAR (AR 2&8F& ([&
ZEDARELEEEAREARRNRAEMBE AR (5
[AEEDRNNER RFNEEEREREDR
BRERMEACEEE AHEFSECHRNERA
Hit NRRERSREENDEENR -

BEERR RBE_Z-TFT_A=1t—HLF
B ARR-—BEETEEBARZMBRAR ([H
R @EFEETRA(NEWARR]) MMz
EREMATA(TRRE AT APEZ AR A
fRXIRTE °

ERETRSFRS

ARRERMETRAME T EMBETAERE
TEFXSHEETA(RETRIDIERESEER
ARBFEHFOITR/TA - REBEGAEESFEHNE
EERE  ARAERAEEEN _T—TFEFR
BENEH A - BEETRETAMRENED -

Exg

EEgRARENEEARE  YEAEEEAEE
ZES RBOHERR BEFSTERBENRE
ETFERE UWEEAKE - 1 BEFEHEH
EEBRENDKEZEFEE TZEE - %FLBEL
FIBEERNABER -

BkmAEANR T -EFLANABEAREBL
FRTEE B - BRABEERZEIARREILIE
WITEF BT -ZTFTA-BAEM-KLE
o BEZE-EBFT_A=+—HILFE EF
SRELEEMEL -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 =T T4




Following the resignation of Mr. Sik Siu Kwan on 9 July 2010, the
number of independent non-executive directors of the Company had
fallen below the minimum number required under Rule 3.10 (1) of the
Listing Rules, and the number of audit committee members of the
company had fallen below the minimum number required under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. Upon the appointment of Mr. Lo Tung Sing
Tony effective 1 October 2010, the Company has duly complied with
Rule 3.10 (1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Board had 7 full board meetings for the year ended 31 December
2010 to consider, among other things, reviewing and approving the
interim and annual results of the Group, overall group strategy, annual
budgets, approval of major capital transactions and other significant
operational and financial matters. During the year, ad-hoc meetings
were convened when circumstance required such as review and
approve capital expenses for production facilities.

Details of the attendance of Directors at full board meetings and at
three other board committees’ meetings (the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee) during the
year 2010 are set out in the following table:

Corporate Governance Report
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No. of meetings attended/held
BRI ERE/BITRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EENSE EEE BEREES REEZEY FMEES
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Li Kei Ling (Chairman) THEBR LT (£E) 7/7 2/2 2/2
Mr. Hung Yung Lai AE RN S A 7/7
Mr. Li Tung Ming FREAKE 7/7
Mr. Gao Vi BREE 7/7
Non-executive Director HiTEE
Mr. Leung Hong Man RRRSLE 4/7
Independent Non-executive Directors B FE#77E F
Mr. Pan Xue Tian EEREAE 7/7 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan* Bk S A 3/3 11 0/0 1/1
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BoEmALE 6/7 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony** 2[R B S A 1/1 0/0 11 0/0
* resigned on 9 July 2010 * RZZE—THF - ANABHE
**  appointed on 1 October 2010 = RZIT-ZEETA-HEZHE
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At least 14 days notice of regular board meeting is given to all
Directors. The agenda and board papers are sent to the Directors at
least 3 days before the meetings of the Board and board committees
so that the Directors have the time to review the documents. Directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if the need arises.
Minutes of meetings of the Board and board committees are recorded
in sufficient details that matters considered and decisions reached.
The draft and final versions of the minutes will be sent to Directors
within a reasonable time after the meetings. Minutes of meetings of
the Board and board committees are kept by the company secretary
of the Company and open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director.

All Directors are entitled to have unrestricted access to the advice and
service of the company secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Upon reasonable request and appropriate circumstances, Directors
can seek independent professional advice to assist them to discharge
their duties, at the Company’s expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board had
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by holding a
board meeting with the presence of disinterested Independent Non-
executive Directors or a meeting of a board committee set up for that
purpose pursuant to a resolution passed in a board meeting.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom four are
Executive Directors, one is Non-executive Director and three are
Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition meets the
recommended practice under the Code on CGP for the Board to have
at least one-third in number of its members comprising Independent
Non-executive Directors. The three Independent Non-executive
Directors are persons of high caliber, with academic and professional
qualifications in the fields of accounting, business management
and pharmaceutical industry respectively. With their experience
gained from senior positions held in other companies, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set
out in pages 26 to 32 to the 2010 annual report, which demonstrates
the skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
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Ms. Li Kei Ling, the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Hung
Yung Lai, one of the Executive Director, are directors and ultimate
shareholders of several companies incorporated in Hong Kong and
British Virgin Islands.

Save as disclosed above, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each
other. The balanced Board composition is formed to ensure strong
independence exits across the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgement.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The nomination committee will consider the appointment of new
Directors first by reviewing the profiles of the candidates and making
recommendations to the Board. New Directors appointed by the
Board during the year to fill a casual vacancy shall retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first general meeting immediately
followed their appointment.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two
years and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at annual general meeting (“AGM”) in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”).

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from
office according to the Company’s Articles. As the Company has eight
Directors, at least one third of them shall retire subject to rotation, and
barring unforeseen resignation/retirement during a year, each Director
is effectively appointed for an average term of not more than 3 years.
Ms. Li Kei Ling, Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr. Pan Xue Tian will retire
at the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony was appointed by
the board to fill a casual vacancy with effect from 1 October 2010. He
will retire at the forthcoming AGM. All retiring Directors are eligible for
re-election.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his first appointment to have a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group and that
he is fully aware of his responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance policies
of the Company. The Directors endeavour to give sufficient time and
attention to the Group’s affairs and are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, business and market changes and the
strategic development of the Group to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in Board
meetings, contribute to the development of strategies and policies
and make sound and independent judgement on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conduct. They will take lead where potential conflicts of
interests arise. They are also members of various board committees
and scrutinize the overall performance of the Group in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting
of performance.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
it to make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by the
management, each Director has separate and independent access
to the Group’s management to make further enquires if necessary.
Where queries are raised by Directors, management will respond as
promptly and fully as possible.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive
officer (the “CEQ”) of the Company are separated and are performed
by two separate individuals who have no relationship with each
other to strike a balance of power and authority so that the job
responsibilities are not concentrated on any one individual. The Board
has appointed Ms. Li Kei Ling as the Chairman. She has executive
responsibilities and provides leadership to the Board such as ensuring
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and received complete and reliable information in a timely manner so
that the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities.

Mr. Gao Yi, an Executive Director and the CEO, is delegated with
the authority and responsibility for managing the Group’s business
operation and implementing the development strategies. Mr. Gao
will present the quarterly results to the Board. Variances analysis
between the actual performances and the budget targets are
explained in the meeting. This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s
business operations and to amend the targets when required. He will
periodically present the updated market situation, long term strategies
and objectives of the Group at the Board meeting to ensure all
Directors are aware of the targets the Group achieves. In addition, Mr.
Gao will also present the coming year budget summary to the Board
for approval at the Board meeting held in December each year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management provides explanation and information to the Board
so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before the approval by the Board.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the accounts.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual
and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcement and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to the regulators as well as the information required to be disclosed
pursuant to the statutory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has delegated to management the implementation of
internal control system as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
procedures.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the
Group’s assets against loss and misappropriation; to maintain proper
accounting records for producing reliable financial information; to
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material
fraud and errors. The Group has clearly defined the authorities and
key responsibilities of each business and operational unit to ensure
adequate checks and balances. Policies are established to ensure
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and industry standards.
Rules and guidelines are set to control treasury activities, financial
and management reporting, human resources functions and computer
systems’ operations. Systems and procedures are also established
to identify, measure, manage and control different risks arising from
different business and functional activities.

The Board monitors and reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of its
internal control systems through a programme of internal audit. The
internal audit function is set up by the Company to review the major
operational and financial control of the Group in compliance with the
established processes and standards on a continuing basis and aims
to cover all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis. The
internal audit team reports directly to the Chairman of the Board and
the Audit Committee.
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The Board also monitors and assesses the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget on an
ongoing basis.

Based on the assessments made by the internal audit team in 2010,
the Board and the audit committee of the Company considered that
the key areas of the Group’s internal control system are reasonably
implemented with room for improvement. The Group shall endeavor to
further improve the Company’s internal control system.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
management by the Board, with division heads responsible for
individual department’s daily operations.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the
Board to the management include the preparation of interim and
annual reports and announcements for the Board’'s approval before
publishing, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee. The committees’ terms of references
defined their functions and responsibilities have posted on the
Company’s website.

Nomination committee

As at 31 December 2010, the nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as the committee’s
chairman, and the three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr.
Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony
as the committee’s members. The Nomination Committee’s terms of
reference are summarized as follows:

i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experiences) of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendation to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

i) to identify suitable individual qualified to become Board
members; and
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il to make recommendation to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or reappointment of Directors if
necessary, in particular, candidates who can add value to the
management through their contributions in the relevant strategic
business areas and which appointments will result on the
constitution of strong and diverse Board.

During the year 2010, the Nomination Committee had two meetings to
review the appointment of director and renewal of Directors’ service
contracts.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2010, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) had Ms. Li Kei Ling as
the committee’s chairman, the three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Lo
Tung Sing Tony as the committee’s members. The Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference are summarized as follows:

i) to ensure that no Director or any of her/his associates is involved
in deciding her/his own remuneration; and

i)  to make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management of the Company for
approval by the Board.

The Group’s remuneration policy bases on the market practice, the
qualification, duties and responsibilities of Directors and employees.
In order to attract, retain, and motivate high-performance persons,
the Company has adopted a share option scheme in 2003 to reward
those participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 7
to the financial statements and the details of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee had two meetings in 2010 to review

and recommend to the Board the salaries and welfare of the Directors
and new appointed director.
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Audit Committee

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
which was established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The
Audit Committee comprises the three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession, commercial
and pharmaceutical sectors.

As at 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee’s chairman was Mr.
Choi Tat Ying Jacky, Mr. Pan Xue Tian and Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony
were the committee’s members. The Audit Committee’s terms of
reference are summarized as follows:

i) to consider and recommend the independence, remuneration,
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

i)  to review financial information; and

il to oversee financial reporting system and internal control
procedures.

During the year 2010, the Audit Committee had two meetings to
discuss financial reporting matters and any areas of concerns during
the audits. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of
the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual
reports.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2010 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
before recommending it to the Board for approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst and Young has been reappointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the AGM on 7 May 2010 until the conclusion of the next
AGM. During the year 2010, the remuneration paid or payable to
the Company’s external auditor in respect of services provided is as
follows:

Fees for audit services amounted to RMB1,100,000.

Fees for non-audit services amounted to RMB75,760.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company establishes and maintains different
communication channels with its shareholders through the publication
of annual and interim reports and press release. Such information is
also available on the Company’s website.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to
communicate directly with the shareholders. The Chairman of the
Board attends the AGM and arranges the chairman of the committees
or in the absence of the chairman of such committees, another
member of the committees to be available to answer questions at the
AGM. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of Directors.

VOTING BY POLL
Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to
demand a poll in compliance with the Articles and the Listing Rules

13.39(4) are included in the circular to shareholders.

The chairman explains the procedure for conducting a poll again at
the commencement of the AGM.

The Company will ensure that votes cast including proxy votes are
properly counted and recorded.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI, Kei Ling, aged 62, is an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company, and one of the founders of the Group.
Ms. Li founded the Group in December 1995 and was appointed
to the Board in October 2002. Ms. Li is also the Chairman of
Dawnrays International Co., Ltd., Dawnrays International Co., Ltd.
(BRI AR AT) , Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology
Co., Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd.,
which are all subsidiaries of the Company. She is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Ms.
Li has over twenty years of experience in corporate management,
strategic planning, business operations and finance, in particular
for pharmaceutical enterprises in the PRC. She is responsible for
supervising the strategic management decisions to ensure good
corporate governance practices and business policies are established,
and executing the overall developmental strategies of the Group.

Mr. HUNG, Yung Lai, aged 66, is an Executive Director of the
Company and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Hung founded
the Group in December 1995 and was appointed to the Board
in October 2002. Mr. Hung also holds directorship in Dawnrays
International Co., Ltd., Dawnrays International Co., Ltd. (HIxH
BRI APRAR) , Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd., Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology
Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a degree from /&%
4Bl (Shanghai Conservatory of Music). He has over twenty years
of experience in corporate management and corporate development,
and has participated in founding and managing of pharmaceutical
and high-tech enterprises. Mr. Hung is an executive director and the
chairman of Sing Lee Software (Group) Ltd., a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LI, Tung Ming, aged 62, is an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in April 2000 and was appointed
to the Board in January 2004. Mr. Li also holds directorship in
Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and Dawnrays
Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Li is also the supervisor of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Li has over twenty years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry
in the PRC, and began his career in product development, promotion,
sales and corporate management in the pharmaceutical market in
the PRC in 1980. Mr. Li is responsible for liaison with the Group’s
academic network of medical experts and academic advisers and
assists in new product development of the Group.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Mr. GAO, Yi, aged 57, is an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group in July 2003
and was the Executive Vice President of the Group. Mr. Gao was
appointed to the Board in January 2007. He also holds directorship
in Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd., Dawnrays
(Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co., Ltd. and
Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd., which are all subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Gao is responsible for the daily business operations
and management of the Group. From 1994 to 2003, Mr. Gao was
the deputy general manager and general manager of Hebei Union
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Zhuhai Economic Zone Li Kang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. respectively each for five years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEUNG, Hong Man, aged 36, is a Non-executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Group and was appointed to the Board
in November 2005. Mr. Leung has started his business career in
knitting machinery since 1993. He has over 10 years experience in
sales and management and also over 10 years experience in finance
and property investments. In recent years, Mr. Leung has strived to
exploit business in hi-tech agriculture and arts and cultural industries.
Mr. Leung currently is the shareholder and the director of Toyo
International Investment Ltd., of which has been one of the substantial
shareholders (as required to be disclosed under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) of the Company since September
2005.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. PAN, Xue Tian, aged 74, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Pan joined the Group in June 2003. He
is a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan is the vice
president of BB (Chinese Hospital Association). Mr. Pan
has extensive experience in drug administration and supervision,
medical hygiene and hospital management, and has assumed various
senior management positions in the Ministry of Health of the PRC.
He graduated from the medicine faculty of FR[El KB EELT (Dalian
Medical University of the PRC).
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Mr. CHOI, Tat Ying Jacky, aged 42, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Choi joined the Group
in September 2004. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company respectively. Mr. Choi has extensive
experience in financial and treasury management, corporate finance,
investment and audit. He earned his Bachelor degree of Business
Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University with a first class
honours in 1990. Mr. Choi is a practising member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and currently serving as the
chief financial officer of Hong Kong Mercantile Exchange Ltd. and is
an independent non-executive director of Norstar Founders Group
Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LO, Tung Sing Tony, aged 42, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in October 2010.
He is a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company respectively. Mr.
Lo has extensive experience in financial management and business
development in Hong Kong and multinational companies. He
obtained his Bachelor degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Master of Science in Financial
Management from The University of London. Mr. Lo is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a full member of CPA Australia. He currently holds the position of
Financial Controller (Betting) at The Hong Kong Jockey Club.

STRATEGIC ADVISER

Dr. XU, Kehan, aged 38, is a Strategic Adviser of the Company. He
joined the Group in November 2003 and was an Executive Director
and the Finance Director of the Company between March 2004
and March 2007. Dr. Xu advises the Company’s investor relations’
policies and other related tasks. Dr. Xu holds a Doctor of Philosophy
in Management from the Mays Business School at the Texas A&M
University, USA and a Master of Business Administration from the
University of Miami, USA (Specialization in Investments). Dr. Xu also
received a Doctor of Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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ACADEMIC ADVISERS

Mr. ZHONG, Nan Shan, was invited to join our Group as a Senior
Academic Adviser in April 2004. He graduated from 1t kK E3%8 E2 30
(Beijing Medical University), and pursued his studies in the Respiratory
Medicine Unit of the Royal Infirmary, University of Edinburgh and
the Department of Respiratory Medicine of the St. Bartholomew’s
Hospital, University of London. He is currently the academician of the
Department of Medicine of The Chinese Academy of Engineering, the
president of Chinese Medical Association, the Professor of Medicine in
Guangzhou Medical College, the president of Guangzhou Association
of Science and Technology and the director of Guangzhou Institute
of Respiratory Disease. Mr. Zhong has been a medical adviser of the
World Health Organisation Advisory Panel since 2000. He has written
4 books and published over 120 papers in the last decade. After the
battle of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”), he was invited
to be the lecturer in the annual meeting of American Thoracic Society
- “Management of SARS in China” in Seattle, the United States.

Mr. MEI, Hua, was invited to join our Group as a Senior Academic
Adviser in April 2004. He graduated from & /N % 2 £ (Guangzhou
South China Medical College) and was qualified as the specialist in
urology from 1t 28 2B [} B 25 —B&FX (The First Affiliated Hospital of
Beijing Medical University) and Massachusetts General Hospital, USA.
He has been the adviser and professor of A LI AE3HYE S — BTN
RHNEH (Department of Urology of The First Affiliated Hospital of Sun
Yat-sen University) since 1980 and a director of SF3I|7 L34 R IMNEL B8
Bt (Department of Urology of Shenzhen Sun Yat-sen Hospital) since
1986. Since 1991, he has been the adviser for doctoral candidates in
the First Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University, the committee
vice president of FEEEEEENRINGZEE (The Urological Society
of Chinese Medical Association) and the committee member of
Urological Association of Asia and American Urological Association.
Mr. Mei has also written 3 books about urology and surgery.
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Ms. LIU, Li Sheng, was invited to join our Group as a Senior
Academic Adviser in May 2005. She obtained a Bachelor degree of
Science in Biology from Yenching University, Beijing in 1950, and
a Doctor of Medicine from Peking Union Medical College, Beijing in
1954. From 1980 to 1981, she pursued her postdoctoral research
in the Cardiovascular Research and Training Centre, University of
Alabama at Birmingham. She is currently the Professor of Medicine
in Fu Wai Hospital, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences in
Beijing, the director of Clinical Trials and Research Centre, Chinese
Hypertension League in Beijing, the vice director of the National
Center for Cardiovascular Disease Control & Research in China and
the president of Asian Pacific Society of Hypertension. She has been
the president and the honorary president of the Chinese Society of
Cardiology since 1988 and the president of the Chinese Hypertension
League since 1989. Ms. Liu has also been the vice president of the
World Hypertension League and the co-chairperson of the Scientific
Steering Committee of Global Health Forum Cardiovascular Disease
in Developing Countries, World Health Organization since 1999. In
2006, Ms. Liu has been elected to be the president of the World
Hypertension League. She is also the chief editor of the Chinese
Journal of Hypertension and the members of a number of editorial
boards of journals in cardiology and hypertension.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHU, Qin Sheng, aged 58, is the Vice President of the Company,
responsible for assisting the Chief Executive Officer in the aspects
of Nantong project, administrative management, human resources,
logistic management, safety and environmental protection. Mr. Zhu
has over twenty-five years experience in production management,
financial management and operations for pharmaceutical enterprises.
He was the deputy factory director of Zk /5 =&L%E (Suzhou Third
Pharmaceutical Factory) before joining the Group in April 1998.

Mr. LAM, Kam Wah, aged 57, is the Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Lam also holds directorship in Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Science
and Technology Co., Ltd., and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong Kong) Ltd.,
which are all subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences. Mr. Lam joined the Group in December 1995 and he
has over fifteen years of experience in pharmaceutical trading and
corporate management. Mr. Lam is involved in managing the Group’s
international trade and daily administration of the Company.
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Mr. LI, Jian Xiang, aged 55, is the Vice President of the Company
and the General Manager of Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd., responsible for assisting the Chief
Executive Officer in the aspects of production and sales, production
planning and the overall operations of Su Zhou Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over twenty-five years
experience in production management, engine facilities maintenance
and operations for pharmaceutical enterprises. He was the factory
director of R/ & — &% (Suzhou Second Pharmaceutical Factory)
before joining the Group in April 1998.

Mr. BO, Hui, aged 49, is the Vice President of the Company and the
Head of Sales and Marketing of the Group. Mr. Bo graduated from
the School of Pharmacy of Shengyang Pharmaceutical University
with a Bachelor degree in Pharmacy and completed the study of the
Postgraduate program in Enterprise Management from the School of
Business Sun Yat-Sen University. Mr. Bo specializes in pharmacology
and has accumulated over twenty years experience in pharmaceutical
sales, marketing and business development. Mr. Bo was the general
manager of Livzon Pharmaceutical Sales Company and the deputy
head of sales and marketing of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Mr.
Bo joined the Group in August 2004.

Ms. WU, Ji Hong, aged 40, is the Financial Controller of the Group
and the General Manager of Guangdong Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd. Ms. Wu is responsible for legal affairs in China and the
Group’s financial management including financial planning, capital
budgeting, execution of costing, overall budget management and
monitoring. Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor degree of Science from The
Economics and Commercial Institution of Center-South University
with major in Economics and attained senior accountant qualification
in the PRC. She achieved her MBA degree (EMBA focus) from Fudan
University in June 2010. Ms. Wu has over fifteen years experience
in auditing, budgeting, financial management, corporate banking,
taxation, PRC’s taxation regulations and company law. Ms. Wu joined
the Group in July 2003.

Mr. CHEN, Jian Dong, aged 46, is the Head of Research and
Development of the Group. Mr. Chen is a qualified pharmaceutical
engineer and licensed pharmacist and has a Bachelor degree in
Chemical Pharmacology from AREIZZRLIKE (The Pharmaceuticals
University of the PRC) where he spent three years as an assistant
teacher. He was the head of the research centre and antibiotics
workshop manager at &t/ 28 /U £ 48 (Suzhou Fourth Pharmaceutical
Factory) and the head of the registration section of the research and
development department of # /N F{LEERTEHFR AR (Suzhou
Chung-Hwa Chemical & Pharmaceutical Industrial Co., Ltd.) before
joining the Group in April 2002.
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Mr. SU, Guo Qiang, aged 41, is the General Manager of Suzhou
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., responsible for the overall
operations of Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr.
Su graduated from EHJZ{L T[T (Wuhan Institute of Chemical
Technology) in chemical pharmaceutical profession and qualified as
a pharmaceutical engineer. He was the head of research centre and
the chief engineer of Z /M % —&LZ&[ (Suzhou Second Pharmaceutical
Factory). He joined the Group in November 2001.

Mr. SHAO, Jian Liang, aged 47, is the General Manager of
Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd., responsible for the manufacturing facilities construction and
overall operations of Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and
Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Shao graduated from JTE#xEEEF A2
(Jiangsu Radio and TV University) in fine organic chemical engineering.
He joined the Group in June 1997.

Ms. PANG, Kit Ling, aged 45, is the Company Secretary of the
Company and the supervisor of Su Zhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. She is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Pang holds a Master of
Arts in Professional Accounting and Information Systems degree from
the City University of Hong Kong and has over 10 years experience in
the fields of accounting and administration. She joined the Company
in July 2003.
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) herein present their report
and the audited financial statements of Dawnrays Pharmaceutical
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements. During 2010, Shanghai Dawnrays Chemical Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary indirectly held by the Company, completed voluntary
winding up and the deregistration issues. Its business was carried
on by Dawnrays (Nantong) Pharmaceutical Science and Technology
Co.,Ltd., a subsidiary indirectly held by the Company. Save as above
mentioned, there was no significant change in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the audited financial statements on pages 46 to 130.

An interim dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share was paid on 21
September 2010. The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.078 per ordinary share in respect of the year,
to shareholders on the register of members on 6 May 2011. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set
out on page 131. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to
RMB1,321,175.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and land use
rights of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in
notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

Details of interest-bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2010 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2010, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2010 the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB272,253,000, of which RMB52,472,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. Under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company of approximately RMB68,212,000 as at 31 December 2010
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 22.30% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 8.60%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 53.77% of the
total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 24.32%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors
Ms. Li Kei Ling

Mr. Hung Yung Lai
Mr. Li Tung Ming
Mr. Gao Yi

Non-executive Director
Mr. Leung Hong Man

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Xue Tian

Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky

Mr. Sik Siu Kwan (resigned on 9 July 2010)

Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony (appointed on 1 October 2010)

In accordance with the article 87 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”), Ms. Li Kei Ling, Mr. Leung Hong Man
and Mr. Pan Xue Tian will retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(*AGM”). As Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony was appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board with effect from 1 October 2010
pursuant to article 86(3) of the Articles, he will retire from office at the
forthcoming AGM, and being eligible offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Pan Xue Tian, Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky and Mr. Lo Tung
Sing Tony, and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 26 to 32 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Li Kei Ling entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Ms. Li’'s service
contract was renewed for a term of three years which commenced
on 1 July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of
three years. Her appointment is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than three months’ written notice. Ms. Li is currently
entitled to director’s fee and other remuneration from the Group totally
HK$518,400 per year.

Mr. Hung Yung Lai entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years which commenced on 1 July 2003. Mr.
Hung’s service contract was renewed for a term of three years which
commenced on 1 July 2005 and will continue thereafter for successive
terms of three years. His appointment is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than three months’ written notice. Mr.
Hung is currently entitled to director’'s fee and other remuneration
from the Group totally HK$518,400 per year.

Mr. Li Tung Ming entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years which commenced on 14 January 2004. Mr.
Li’s service contract was renewed on 1 January 2007 for a term
of three years and will continue thereafter for successive terms of
three years. His appointment is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than three months’ written notice. Mr. Li is currently
entitled to director’s fee and other remuneration from the Group totally
HK$518,400 per year.

Mr. Gao Yi has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years which commenced on 1 January 2007
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of two years. His
appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than two months’ written notice. Mr. Gao is currently entitled
to director’s fee and other remuneration from the Group totally
HK$986,400 per year and a discretionary bonus payable at the
absolute discretion of the Board.
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Mr. Leung Hong Man has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of two years which commenced on 1 November
2005 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of two years.
His appointment is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than one month’s written notice. Mr. Leung is currently entitled
to a basic annual remuneration of HK$120,000. Save for the above
director’s fee, Mr. Leung is not entitled to any other remuneration.

Mr. Pan Xue Tian has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of two years which commenced on 1 July
2008 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of two years.
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of two years which commenced on 30
September 2004 and will continue thereafter for successive terms of
two years. Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of two years which commenced on 1
October 2010. Mr. Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Lo’s appointments are
subject to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice. Each of Mr. Pan, Mr. Choi and Mr. Lo is currently
entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$150,000. Save for the above
directors’ fees, the three Independent Non-executive Directors are not
entitled to any other remuneration.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group. There is no
contract of significance between the Group, its controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRETE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on RAABRZEE=FNA -+ — BRNERETS
21 June 2003.The maximum number of shares permitted to be issued ([Z&TE]) - BEZTEITEEREMEEEITH
upon the exercise of options under the Scheme was 80,000,000 B 19 & = & B /580,000,000% » HERAARQ AN £
shares which was 10% of the shares of the Company in issue upon TE (BRIECEF) B HEITRHA10% + (hRAFH
listing (unless refreshed) and represented approximately 10.04% of Tl BHARRFIEBITIRAE10.04% © A REZA 2
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this annual BYEF 1B I BB AR A o0 (i (B P B B R MY 5131 ©
report. The detailed disclosures relating to the Scheme and valuation

of options are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Movements of Company’s share options under the Scheme during the KERN - Zetl P AR BIBREZLESOT -
year were as follows:

Closing price of the

Number of share options Company’s shares (c)
BREHE FARRBUTER(C)
At
immediate
Date of grant Exercise date
of share Exercise period price before
At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed At options (a) of share options  of share the grant
January during during  during the 31 December (dd/mm/yy) (dd/mm/yy) options (b) B
Name or 2010 the year the year year (d) 2010 RAERE BhE  BRE BhRE
category of SHEER  WC-3-BF ER ER Ejp R-E-BF Af(a) TERE  TEED) A-x
participant ] -A-H BEH B B&Md T=E=1-A (R/ A/ &) (A/ A/ &) HKS HKS
BB B
Director EZ
Mr. Gao Vi BREE 300,000 - (300,000) - - 28/12/04  28/12/05 - 27/12/10 058 059
3,000,000 - (1,800,000) - 1,200,000 04/04/07  04/04/08 - 08/04/13 0.71 0.70
3,300,000 - (2,100,000) - 1,200,000
Other employees ~ H#tES
In aggregate Bt 1,100,000 - (1,100,000) - - 17H1/04 - 17/11/05 - 16/11/10 063 062
4,368,000 - (4,368,000 - - 28/12/04  28/12/05 - 27/12/10 058 059
800,000 - (640,000) (160,000) - 10/01/07  01/09/07 - 31/08/12 072 0.68
4,280,000 - (1,800,000) - 2,480,000 04/04/07  04/04/08 -03/04/13 0 070
780,000 - (100,000) - 680,000 10/07/07  10/07/08 - 09/07/13 080 080
800,000 - (320,000) - 480,000 01/02/08  01/02/09 - 31/01/14 0.74 0.74
1,000,000 - (200,000) - 800,000 09/12/08  09/12/09 - 08/12/14 0.70 0.1
13,128,000 - (8,528,000) (160,000) 4,440,000

16,428,000

(10,628,000) (160,000 5,640,000
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(@) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

(b) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

(c) The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at immediate
date before the grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of
grant of the options.

(d) Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme due
to resignation of employees.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately before the
exercise date of the share options is the weighted average of the
Stock Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised over all of the exercise of options within
the disclosure line. The weighted average closing price of Company’s
shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised by the Director and other employees were HK$1.57 and
HK$2.24 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARAEBERF LR

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FENROHE - SORESENHE

Percentage of
the Company’s

Through issued share
Directly Share Option controlled capital
beneficially granted corporation P N
Name Notes owned EERN BB Total BRITHRAE
HB i3 ERERERES BB iE NRHEE By MED
Directors
S
Ms. Li Kei Ling
FHRRL (@) - - 342,072,000 342,072,000 42,92
Mr. Hung Yung Lai
RERMIS SR (@) - - 342,072,000 342,072,000 42.92
Mr Li Tung Ming
FRALE (b) 9,976,000 - 56,000,000 65,976,000 8.28
Mr. Gao Yi
=REE (©) 3,000,000 1,200,000 - 4,200,000 0.53
Mr. Leung Hong Man
ZREREE (d) - - 60,000,000 60,000,000 7.53

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated

corporation:

RAEEOEE B R AR P AVEF A

Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s

Capacity and issued share

Name of nature of capital

associated  Relationship with Number of interest EEELE

Name of Director corporation the Company Shares shares R BRITRA

S4B HEEEER BADNAMER i) k&R BHftE WEDL

Ms. Li Kei Ling Fortune United the Company’s Ordinary shares 2 Through a controlled 50
TERLL Group Limited holding company LRk corporation
RRRNBERAR BB AT

Mr. Hung Yung Lai Fortune United the Company’s Ordinary shares 2 Through a controlled 50
BRI Group Limited holding company 3l corporation
ARAEMERAR RB-REHRTE
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Notes:

(@) 342,072,000 shares are held by Fortune United Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Keysmart Enterprises
Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling, and Hunwick
International Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai, are
each beneficially interested in 50% of the share capital of Fortune United
Group Limited.

(b) 56,000,000 shares are held by Time Lead Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued
share capital of Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially owned by
Mr. Li Tung Ming.

(c) 1,200,000 shares options were granted to Mr. Gao Yi under the
Company’s option scheme adopted on 21 June 2003 and Mr. Gao
is deemed to be interested in the shares which will be issued to him
upon his exercise of option, representing approximately 0.15% of the
Company’s issued share capital.

(d) 60,000,000 shares are held by Toyo International Investment Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Hong Man and Mr.
Leung Yiu Sing are each beneficially interested in 50% of the share
capital of Toyo International Investment Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share option scheme”,
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above and in the share option scheme
disclosures in note 31 to the financial statements, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

FERRREMALTREROREBERG RS

SHARES
As at 31 December 2010, the following interests or short positions in RZE—ZEFF+ZA=+—H8 BEBZBHFLRBER
the shares and underlying shares of the Company were recorded in PIE336IKAR A RRAIFENE R T M LRk

the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant RARE RO REBRDOESSIAEHIIAT ¢

to Section 336 of the SFO:

b

Long positions: A

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FENROHE - SHRESEME

Percentage of
the Company’s

Through issued share
Directly controlled capital
Beneficially Family corporation NG|
Name Notes owned interest BB Total ERITRE
=g LiEss EEESES KEER DNEEFE By WEDL
Fortune United Group
Limited (@) 342,072,000 - - 342,072,000 42.92
Keysmart Enterprises
Limited () - - 342,072,000 342,072,000 42.92
Hunwick International
Limited (@) - - 342,072,000 342,072,000 42.92
Mdm. lu Pun (b) - 342,072,000 - 342,072,000 42.92
W L+
Time Lead Investments
Limited (c) 56,000,000 - - 56,000,000 7.03
Toyo International
Investment Limited (d) 60,000,000 - - 60,000,000 7.53
REEBRIRERR AR
Mdm. Lo Mei Sai (e) - 60,000,000 - 60,000,000 7.53
BEA/ALL
Mr. Leung Yiu Sing (d)&(g) - - 61,824,000 61,824,000 7.76
Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong (H&(g) - 60,000,000 1,824,000 61,824,000 7.76
BEFUL
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Notes:

(@)  The issued capital of Fortune United Group Limited is equally beneficially
owned by Keysmart Enterprises Limited and Hunwick International
Limited which are in turn, respectively, wholly-owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling
and Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Executive Directors of the Company.

(b)  Mdm. lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Hung Yung Lai.

(c) The entire issued capital of Time Lead Investments Limited is beneficially
owned by Mr. Li Tung Ming, an Executive Director of the Company.

(d) The issued capital of Toyo International Investment Limited is equally
beneficially owned by Mr. Leung Hong Man, the Non-executive Director
of the Company and his father Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

(e)  Mdm. Lo Mei Sai is the wife of Mr. Leung Hong Man and is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Hong Man.

(fy) ~ Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong is the wife of Mr. Leung Yiu Sing and is deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Mr. Leung Yiu Sing.

(9) 1,824,000 shares of the Company are held by Dragon Asia Industrial
(Holdings) Ltd., a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Leung Yiu
Sing and Mdm. Chu Shuet Fong, his wife, are each beneficially interest in
50% of the share capital of Dragon Asia Industrial (Holdings) Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no person, other
than the Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s

total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Li Kei Ling
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2011
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR E

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=2 K

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 130,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

14 March 2011
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Year ended 31 December 2010 HBE=ZT—TF+-A=+—HIEFE

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE PARENT

— basic, for profit for the year

— diluted, for profit for the year

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are

EF

H Al WA Ko e 5
HENMDHER
THER

Hi &M
Mi5E R

B B4 413 )
RSB

4 B
AT & B A

BREEAA
FEIE R R

BRAEBRERS
BFEAEWG

BREF

—BEKX DAFREmMEE

— - UARFRERENFE

disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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Notes

B &t

10

11

13

2010 2009
—E-%%  C—2INF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AREFIT
1,286,683 1,082,110
(910,526) (754,058)
376,157 328,052
9,145 4,595
(95,673) (101,2086)
(48,884) (47,575)
(31,317) (32,008)
(549) (395)
208,879 151,463
(42,041) (33,119)
166,838 118,344
166,840 118,388

(2) (44)
166,838 118,344
RMBO0.2104 RMBO0.1513
RMBO0.2093 RMBO.1506

AEFE RN BRI S FBHNM B RRME12 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZHEBER

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-T—TF+_A=+—RHIFE

2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARET T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR IR A 166,838 118,344

Exchange differences bE X =% (786) (90)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEERBEAEHME2E

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX EEAH (786) (90)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEERBEZZEKE

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX FLR-0 166,052 118,254

Attributable to: LA & TE AL

Owners of the parent [SINEIEZF =N 166,054 118,298

Non-controlling interest PR A (2) (44)

166,052 118,254

—ZT—T4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010

RREA (1) BMRAE DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

31 December 2010 W-ZT—TF+-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Construction in progress
Intangible assets

Interests in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals

Bank advances for discounted bills
Interest-bearing bank loans
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES
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Notes
Bt 5

14
15
16
17
18
29

19
20

21

22
23
23

24
26
25
27

Group Company
rEE ¥ /N

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F _"TTNEFE ZB-BF _"TITNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRE AR¥T AR®BTR AR%TxR
269,416 250,186 - 4
46,421 47,462 - -
117,030 85,699 - =
14,914 15,685 - _
- - 283,150 287,505
1,264 1,206 - -
449,045 400,238 283,150 287,509
181,868 184,346 - =
499,495 435,308 - -
15,830 14,309 187 189
6,244 5,814 6,244 5,814
49,700 - - -
210,975 86,450 4,533 3,973
964,112 726,227 10,964 9,976
427,044 350,455 - -
76,499 40,814 1,004 611
100 5,000 - =
51,056 1,761 - -
9,827 5,951 - -
564,526 408,981 1,004 611
399,586 322,246 9,960 9,365
848,631 722,484 293,110 296,874
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R &R

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

Group Company
& AA T
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF ZB-BF _—ZTThHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B 5 AR®BTR ARBTT AR%®FTx ARETx
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITER 27 - 3,522 - =
Government grants RSN 28 - 1,120 - =
Deferred tax liability EBEFRIBEAG 29 13,677 5,998 - -
Total non-current liabilities EmB A EETE 13,677 10,640 - =
Net assets BEE 834,954 711,844 293,110 296,874
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BAREE ABMGER
of the parent
Issued capital BEITIRD 30 84,578 83,649 84,578 83,649
Reserves G 32 697,904 592,871 156,060 178,456
Proposed final dividend R R BARR B 12 52,472 34,769 52,472 34,769
834,954 711,289 293,110 296,874
Non-controlling interest FEIER R - 555 - =
Total equity A 834,954 711,844 293,110 296,874
LI KEI LING GAO YI
ZH® a8
Director Director
2 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERBEHK

Year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZT—TF+_A=+—RHILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BREEEAEHER
Capital Statutory ~ Exchange Proposed Non-
Share  redemption Share surplus ~ fluctuation final controlling
Issued  premium reserve option Contributed reserve reserve  Retained  dividend interest Total

capital  account ER  reseve  supls  EEEHR EX  profits Bk Total iR equity
BEARA RAGE BOEG BREEE S R%  NRE  ADER  REER KBRS @it Ba EREE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR

(note 30) (note 32)  (note 32)  (note 32)  (note 32)  (note 32) (note 12)
(F3t30) (W3ts) (W) (Makse) (Ws2)  (s2) (H#12)

At 1 January 2009 RZZSNE-A-H 82,964 57,684 2,699 2,622 100,175 74,051 (7,514) 288,383 27477 628,541 672 629,213
Profit for the year AERET = - - - - - - 118,388 - 118,388 (44) 118,344
Other comprehensive loss AEFHMAEER:

for the year:

Exchange differences ERES - = = = = = (90) = = (90) - (90)
Total comprehensive income AEEREMELEE

for the year - - - - - - 90 118388 - 118208 (¢4 118254
Exercise of share options IR iaRE 31 701 4,283 - (795) - - - - - 4,189 - 4,189
Shares repurchased and cancelled  EE k&7 30 (16) (102) 16 - - - - (16) - (118) - (118)
Dividends paid to non-controling B ERRERRS

interest - - - - - = = = = = (73) (73)
Final 2008 dividend declared ER-ZZ/\ERERE = - - - - - - - e - pram)
Dividend on shares issued for “ZEN\FTZA=T-H

employee share options exercised & 17{EHIE S BRER

after 31 December 2008 Fkhnks - - - - - - - (17) - (17) - (17)
Equity-settled share option DRES AR REZ

arrangements 31 = = = 325 = = = = = 326 = 325
Interim 2009 dividend ZETNERERE 12 - - - - - - - (12452 - (12452 - (12452
Proposed final 2009 dividend BR-ZENERERS 12 - - - - - - - (34769) 34,769 - - -
Transfer from retained profits BRBEFTES - - - - - 13,071 - (1307) - - - -
At 31 December 2009 R=EENhE+-A=+-H 83,649 61,865 2,715" 2,162" 100,175 87,122 (7,604)  346,446* 34,769 711,289 555 711,844
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERBEHK

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-T—TF+_A=+—RHIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

VL EINC &

Capital Statutory Exchange Proposed Non-
Share redemption Share surplus fluctuation final controlling
Issued  premium  reserve option Contributed ~ reserve  reserve Retained  dividend interest Total
capital  account BX  reserve  surplus  EEREH EX  profits Bk Total  FEBR  equity
BREARA RHEE BORE BRERE HAR%  ARE  RIEE REEN ABRR @ BE RERAR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi ARMTr AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARETR AR%TR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 30) (note 32)  (note 32)  (note 32)  (note 32)  (note 32) (note 12)
(RizE30) (Wats2)  (Wise)  (Ms2)  (Msks2)  (M&s2) (H312)
At 1 January 2010 R=E-FF-F-H 83,649 61,865* 2,115 2,152 100,175* 87,122 (7,604)* 346,446* 34,769 711,289 555 711,844
Proft for the year REEER - - - - - - - 166,840 - 166,840 2) 166,838
Other comprehensive loss AEEEMEERE
for the year:
Exchange differences ERER - - - - - - (786) - - (786) - (786)
Total comprehensive income AEEREMELES - - - - - - (786) 166,840 - 166,054 2) 166,052
for the year
Liquidation of a subsidiary HBLAMBRMLER - - - - - (1,599) - 1,599 - - (553) (553)
Exercise of share options fiieiEiRkiE 31 929 6,347 - (1,219 - - - - - 6,001 - 6,001
Final 2009 dividend declared ERZFENERERE - - - - - - - - (34,769)  (34,769) - (34,769)
Divicend on shares issued for ZZTNETZA=T-H
employee share options exercised & 1T{E (8 B BRUER
after 31 December 2009 EBDEES - - - - - - - (82) - (82) - (82)
Equity-settled share option DRES RERER
arrangements 31 - - - 187 - - - - - 187 - 187
Interim 2010 dividend —Z-ZERHRE 12 - - - - - - - (18,726) - (13,726) - (13,726)
Proposed final 2010 dividend WE-E2-FEXIRE 12 - - - - - - - (524712 52412 - - -
Transfer from retained profits BRBERhEE - - - - - 7511 - (751) - - - -
At 31 December 2010 W=E-FF+-A=+-H 84,578 68,212 2,715* 1,064*  100,175*  103,034*  (8,390)* 431,094* 52,472 834,954 - 834,954
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * I EFEES L ARKE97,904,000(Z2EZ N AR

RMB697,904,000 (2009: RMB592,871,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Year ended 31 December 2010 HBE=ZT—TF+-A=+—HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

RETHNRERE

Profit before tax: B A A g A
Adjustments for: BT FHE
Finance costs B%ER
Interest income FEMA
Dividend income from equity BEBREBEmUARBETYER
investments at fair value through 2 WA A w iR B A

profit or loss
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Recognition of land use rights
Gain on disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:
Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity-settled share option expense
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of intangible assets
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and notes receivables

Increase in prepayments

Decrease in deposits and other
receivables

Increase in trade and notes payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables

Increase in accruals

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

HEME  BEERE
HERER

e

T (EAHEER

HEBBBERNARAE
5Bk Z IR A B B 2

APEL €930
FBBBEARREIIR

ZBRAZE

DA RS 52 < Y P s 128 e 52

e E 5 R E

BV EERE
AR

BERD,(Em)

e E 5 R EEFKIAE
TR FRIE A

e K E A R R IER

FE B 5 M RIEIAIE

H b fE 5 FRIAE 0, OR )

JEIRE AE 0
EFEH

RERHEENRSREFA

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED — Eis&%5 (330%) BRAR]

Notes
B 5

2010 2009
—E-%%  C—2INF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®Tx AREFIT
208,879 151,463
549 395
(2,308) (477)
(174) (135)

144 1,002
24,742 24,610
1,390 1,476
1,041 1,694

(54) (498)

(62) (1,871)

187 325

- 1,871

- 200

- 1,137

234,334 181,192
2,478 (24,810)
(69,087) (64,174)
(1,816) (67)
295 1,415
76,589 67,156
38,107 (1,755)
1,988 4,833
(30,544) (24,803)
252,344 138,987
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Year ended 31 December 2010 HE=-T—TF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B 5 AR T AR¥ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREFENEREERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B W F B 4 2,308 477
Dividend income from equity investments BUEBRE AR 2B
at fair value through profit or loss Z AR A B iR B A 4 174 135
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEWE  BERZE
property, plant and equipment TH B WP 1S K18 2,757 2,503
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEFEBEBZUADRBETER
investments at fair value through 2 BRI & B BT 1S 3R
profit or loss 802 2,295
Purchase of items of property, plant BEWE BERZE
and equipment and construction HERERETLRE
in progress (83,660) (61,852)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE 17 (619) (2,730)
Purchase of equity investments at BEZBERUNAREYER
fair value through profit or loss LRI E (1,119) (2,338)
Receipt of government grants B A5 /Y BT $ 3K - 1,120
Purchase of land use rights BE T AR - (6)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFHEANRSREFRE (79,357) (60,396)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBNEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share options 7750 B R ¥ /9 FT 13 3K 78 6,001 4,189
Proceeds from bank loans BSIRITERTWEIA IR & 48,808 5,283
Repayment of bank loans EEERTERNRS (1,735) =
Repurchase of shares AN ER R S VNG g0 - (118)
Interest paid BRFE 5 (549) (395)
Dividends paid BB (48,577) (39,946)
Increase of bank deposits restricted for N A ES IR 1T B 3 M R
bank loans ZIRTTIF X (49,700) =
Liquidation of a subsidiary MEARIEBERMEAER (627) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEEFEAMNRSRE TR (46,379) (30,987)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBSEEYHEMFR
EQUIVALENTS 126,608 47,604
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUNReRBEE2EFEY
of year 86,450 38,936
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ER&8) 2 32  HE (2,083) (90)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRREEEY
END OF YEAR 210,975 86,450
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERASEEYERDIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BHe RRTER 23 150,975 86,450
Short-term deposits 5EERERITIE X 23 60,000 =
210,975 86,450
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31 December 2010 W-ZT—TF+-A=+—H

Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands on 20 September 2002 under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business is located at Suites 3212-13, Shell
Tower, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) underwent a reorganisation on 21 June 2003 to
rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing
of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
pursuant to which the Company became the holding company of
the Group (the “Group Reorganisation”).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in
the development, manufacture and sale of non-patented
pharmaceutical medicines including intermediate pharmaceutical,
bulk medicines and finished drugs. In the opinion of the directors,
Fortune United Group Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2008.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss that have been measured at fair value. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED — Eis&%5 (330%) BRAR]

RIn®A (ER) ARAA ([AAaAl) K=
TZE_FANAZZTHEHBREREESQRE
(—WAR—FFE=% KEERETE=-1T=
ERFAEHEEAMKLAEREER AR - K
A7) 2 E % = B & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, i1 = & 4 ¥ it 25 >~
b Ak Bl 2 25 iR 2 ) H B 1R RS R B IS IR
BAE3212-13F °

BRSEEEABLEARRREME QR (RH
[AEE D NRBUASHEARRNBRNEETE
BMAXZMARRIE ([BRM]) ERLES - B
“ET=FRA+—H ARBEKRRBERAE
SENMEARNZERAR(TSEER]) -

REERFAEZENEIFEN Y - 2iE
RHE  BERHEE  BHERKE - EFER
7 REBHER RS EMA A A FFortune
United Group Limited @ & 782 &) ) 5 42 #258 i%
NETID

ARBBMR _FTZ=FtA+— BN
IHRET

AREE 276 VB HmRORIBREER S5 2832
g ((BERerEAEES ) R ER®
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RAMBRREELRARAURR  AAAR
BN BBREEAN  AAESEITEAA
EREE T -
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Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2010. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
the subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 January 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been applied
on a prospective basis. The following differences, however, are
carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of
consolidation:

o Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-
controlling interest until the balance was reduced to nil.
Any further excess losses were attributable to the parent,
unless the non-controlling interest had a binding obligation
to cover these. Losses prior to 1 January 2010 were not
reallocated between non-controlling interest and the parent
shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the
investment retained at its proportionate share of net asset
value at the date control was lost. The carrying amount of
such investment at 1 January 2010 has not been restated.

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

BOfEE

B - F—FF—HA—HENSHEE
FAMBRREEARAREANBARSE
Z—ZF+ A=+ —HIEFENUBERE -
LM B A R 75 R WO RS B SR 2 R AR
Al BERTBERTER B - MBARXRERK
BR(AMAKERGENERR) E2EAHA
B X —EHAMHAREESEGIRE LRI -
BEBRNRAREER  RHUNKEMEEHE
WABERNEEMBEERREEREHER
SO

B AR E R TR N IR E R - Bl
Bo|HERBEE -

—RMBERBRNEE AENEEZEE OREXR
EEGIE)  RIIRBERH AR -

A B R = — KB A R ARG - AIE
BERRI)ZMNBRARNEE (BEBEE) KA
f& ~ (i) fA] FE 42 AR 42 25 A0 BR T B Rz (i) A A 2 I
RMEMERFRHERE  MERO)AMRAENQ
1B - ()FTREBEMIZEN R ;B Ki)E=kR
AT I EE A IR S kB 18 © SERTIR E A 2
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS ¥R AR MY

31 December 2010 W-ZT—TF+-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 (Revised)

IFRS 3 (Revised)

IAS 27 (Revised)

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 2 Amendments

IFRS 5 Amendments

IAS 39 Amendment

IFRIC - Int 17

Improvements to
IFRSs 2009

First time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting standards
Business Combinations

Consolidated and separate financial
statements

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters

Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions

Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations — plan to
sell the controlling interest in
a subsidiary

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Eligible Hedged
Items

Distribution of non-cash assets to
owners

Amendments to a number of IFRSs

The adoption of the above new and revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2010 although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events.

56 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ~ H328l%5 (288) BRAR
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

IFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters 2

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments. Disclosures —

Transfers of Financial Assets *

Financial Instruments °

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 9

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures *

IAS 32 Amendment Amendment to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues '

IFRIC-Int 14 Amendments to IFRIC-Int 14
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement
IFRIC-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments 2

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued Improvements to
IFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010, whereas the
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 34 and IFRIC-Int 13
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR B EE

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H
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31 December 2010 R-ZT—TF+-A=+—H

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 is the first part of phase 1 of a comprehensive project
to entirely replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial
assets into four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets
as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value,
on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of financial
assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39.

The IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address financial
liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the current
derecognition principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS
39, while changes were made to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss using the
fair value option (“FVQ”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes
in credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value is presented
in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have been
designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. Before
this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets continues to apply.
The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2013.
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Improvements to IFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2011. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Those amendments
that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
policies are as follows:

(@ IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that the
amendments to IFRS 7, IAS 32 and IAS 39 that eliminate
the exemption for contingent consideration do not apply
to contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the
application of IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the scope of the
measurement choices of non-controlling interests at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets to components of non-controlling
interests that are present ownership interests that entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation. Other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by
another IFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to clarify
the accounting treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily
replaced share-based payment awards.

(b) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that
an analysis of other comprehensive income for each
component of equity can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the
financial statements.

(c) IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Clarifies that the consequential amendments from IAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS 31 shall
be applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 or earlier if IAS 27 is applied earlier.
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Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 January 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it should not be remeasured
until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Business combinations from 1 January 2070 (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010 but after 1
January 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which were
applied on a prospective basis, the following differences applied
to business combinations prior to 1 January 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase
method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest
(formerly known as minority interest) was measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as
separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did not
affect previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree were not
reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination
resulted in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modified the cash flows that otherwise would have been required
under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the
Group had a present obligation, the economic outflow was
more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable.
Subsequent adjustments to the contingent consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

EBaoREE(E)

H-ZF—FF—H - HENEEE G (F)
RUAHERR - BBERRARERRERERS
B - HEASFIERERNR  EAFMFE
G ) RREEA A ERER - Alg
FRTHWETAR - AKERt-_A=1+—81
ETARENFRERENN - BETRERR -
BRBREXBEHEL ZHERDEETER
BEXEREH ZHBRREZARERSERSE
EBURRERCELEGAR  MBABK
AEEEGREMEELABEIRERFTEM
Rz FEMAR -

WEEEKReELEM (KReELENME
AR MR EMN N EBDHE  AlE
EBEMOERFMRENERE - BAHER
BHRENEESF AZETNEREE - £%15
MTHENEE  DREMOEXHNEHEE
ERREELEUNRENEETAE -

R-F—FF—HA—HAER=FEHLF—A
—HENRES G

B EARREREEAMREMRL - R=F
—EE-A-HAETHEBSHEUTS
Gl

EBAHERBERERIIR BEERBEBRUER
RPUA - BB AN — B0 o FFERE
= (ATl D BACR ) TR FEE IRAR I
BIEIE W E T AT BRI FEERE -

DIEBEITRBA BTN T AR » EAHE
M TR R GRS T2 B LA RN
=,

EAKEBA-BEEBE  RRBEITREALN
7 B B9 HR A DT A T A 3 M A U B B B2 T T
o BREZEBEHSENLAZHMEHY
BHREMBNRSREMFEEKNER] -

REFERREME KEMNZRETREEER
BRe MBS SR - ARETHERBAAK
B HRIARREREFABRBEISEHEN—

55 -

RREA (1) BMRAE DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED



31 December 2010 A=

—ZE+-A=1+—H

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries that are not classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the Group companies. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
the income statement with the exception of all monetary items
that provide an effective hedge for a net investment in a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income
until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are
recognised in the income statement. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are
also recorded in equity.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currency of the Company, Dawnrays International
Co., Ltd. (“Dawnrays International”), Dawnrays International Co.,
Ltd. (“Dawnrays International (HK)”) and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Dawnrays Pharma”) (collectively the “Overseas
Companies”), is the Hong Kong Dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these companies are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (RMB) at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Overseas Companies are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding
discounts, rebates and sales taxes or duty. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

Interest income

Interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Notes to Financial Statements
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POLICIES (Cont’d)

Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date, in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Income Tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and
is released to the income statement over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the income
statement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China (the “Mainland China Subsidiaries”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Accommodation benefits

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the
Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to the income statement as incurred.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, an appropriate
capitalisation rate shall be applied to the expenditure on the
individual assets.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants (the Company’s directors, employees of the Group
and other eligible participants) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
eligible participants render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible participants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined using a Black-Scholes-
Merton valuation model, further details of which are given in note
31. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if
applicable. The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the
minimum expense recognised is the expense as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the participants as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the entity or the employee are not met. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards
are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share
(further details are given in note 13).

Investment and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.
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Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term
deposits, trade and other receivables, loans and other
receivables and quoted financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other income and gains or
finance costs in the income statement. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” above.

The Group evaluated its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading), to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification to
loans and receivables, available-for-sale or held to maturity
depends on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not
affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option at designation.
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Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance income in the income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the income statement in
other expenses.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in finance income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement in other expenses.
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Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement in other income, or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income statement
in other operating expenses and removed from the available-
for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and dividends
earned are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the income statement as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” above.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in
rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables
is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only
when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity
date of the financial asset.

THH  ANNUAL REPORT 2010

31 December 2010 R-—ZT—TF+_-_A=+—H

RERAEMMBEE (&)
KEFE (B)

AR EBRE
AHHEMBERERE LTI EMARAR
BEBBFTPHFITERBEE - 2 E/AHH
EZ&K&ﬁ%I# FRRTBANMEEERE
DRBFBERARABEIRZRARE - £iE
DENEB IS RITEERAF AL ATERE
HFERATRE L ENEF

ROLHERRER  THEEMBREBRRAA
BEFfE HAEREZSEAEMEEEA
EAfHfHEREBERETRR  EEZKRE
HEUEER (BERFRERERBRKERTH
HWA) - kEEZRERABE LRRE (&
%%FE SHERI MR EMEEA A
WAHRE AT ERERERZETHIR) o PRI
B S A0 BB 20 Bl 7 ) B M AR B B A
HET2W - BB EXTWAER | PTEBUR » #
E«u\ﬁu&mé‘%q] E"]Eﬂﬂ”&ﬁ °©

W LMBEAR SN AR ERQEEARERY
AHENEBHZREMEFEENK(D)EE
MEE T AT AR EA & I T 4 R A 1B
SRAREMAER SEHAE - AREFREFIRK
AR AR E B AR

$%lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁTﬁﬁ%%F§E
MENLERREBEE - EAKEREMST
%%&a@@%Tﬁﬁhxm%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁm
PMBLEBERXSVBEER  AEERSH
LHBERATEEBEN D BEREMNBEE - B
BEMTEERMEKRFEESE  YNAER
BREZPEAEERSEALBENTEZRE
BE AAERSBRRERMEYRE - BE
ERARERAENLAIRENKEEES
AR TAEMDBRKEIHAMBEE
=

RREA (1) BMRAE DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED



31 December 2010 R-ZT—TF+-A=+—H

Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the assets carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets
original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.
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Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded
as part of finance income in the income statement. Loans
together with the associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other expenses in the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unqguoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through the income statement.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in
the income statement. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through the
income statement if the increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings (or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge) as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
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Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Initial recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes payables,
other payables and loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets at each reporting date is determined by reference to
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positions), without any
deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the
fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis or other valuation models.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont’d)
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and other equipment 51to 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid land lease payments
under operating leases, which are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location
and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials Purchase cost on a weighted-average
basis;

Finished goods and  Cost of direct materials and labour and
work in progress  a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity but

excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERBE(E)

82

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the
Company that gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (i) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e);

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of
the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement which has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 2.4. Initial capitalisation of costs is
based on management’s judgements that technological and
economical feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product
development project has reached a defined milestone according
to an established project management model.
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting date.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indications that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determining the
most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life of the share option, volatility
and dividend vyield and making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share
based payment transactions are disclosed in note 31.

For management purposes, the Group organizes the business
units based on their products.

In previous years, the Group operated and managed its business
as a single segment that included the manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical products. In the year ended 31 December 2010,
in line with the business growth, the Group’s chief operating
decision maker started to review results of individual business
units instead of consolidated results when making decisions
about allocating resources and assessing performance of the
Group. For management purposes, the Group’s business is
organized into the following two reportable segments:

a) Manufacture and sale of Intermediates and bulk medicines

b) Manufacture and sale of Finished drugs (including antibiotics
finished drugs and non-antibiotics finished drugs)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Management monitors the operating results of these operating
segments for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that interest income, finance costs, government grants,
dividend income, fair value gains/(losses) from the Group’s
financial instruments as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank loans, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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3.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Year ended
31 December 2010

Segment Revenue:

Sales to external customers

Intersegment sales

Segment Results
Reconciliation:
Unallocated gains
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax

Year ended
31 December 2009

Segment Revenue:

Sales to external customers

Intersegment sales

Segment Results
Reconciliation:
Unallocated gains
Corporate and other
unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax

BE-Z-Z&
+T-ZA=+—-BLFE

SEKA
HINHE
DB E

DEER

I

RO BERA
EREAM
APBEX
MIEER

B 75 B A

HE-_ZTZThF
+-—A=+—RHLLFE

DEWA :
HoNEE
DHEREEE

DEEE

HE

RO BRA
EEREM
APBEX
MBER

B 35 A A
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3.

Intermediates

DHER(F)

Elimination of

and bulk intersegment
medicines Finished sales
B8 drugs KESE Total
RER 5 2%:3 E#HE FER
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR AR¥TR AR%®TxR ARETR
813,415 473,268 - 1,286,683
114,259 - (114,259) -
927,674 473,268 (114,259) 1,286,683
106,230 174,421 - 280,651
7,752
(78,975)
(549)
208,879
Intermediates Elimination of
and bulk intersegment
medicines Finished sales
e drugs HiH D4R Total
R Rk} 2 P % EiHE FEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFIT ARBTT AR T T AR T T
636,014 446,096 - 1,082,110
127,260 - (127,260) -
763,274 446,096 (127,260) 1,082,110
88,525 119,576 - 208,101
4,101
(60,344)
(895)
151,463
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

As at
31 December 2010

Segment Assets:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment Liabilities:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

As at
31 December 2009

Segment Assets:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment Liabilities:
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

—ZT—T4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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3. 2EEH

Intermediates
and bulk
medicines
FE R
RIRR 5
RMB’ 000
ARETR

791,419

417,237

Intermediates
and bulk
medicines
R
R} 5
RMB’ 000
ARBTT

708,522

321,826

/48 )
W=l

Finished
drugs

PR
RMB’ 000
AR TR

257,067

49,871

Finished
drugs

B %
RMB’ 000
AR®ETF T

241,430

33,948

Total

wny
RMB’000
ARETR

1,048,486

364,671

1,413,157

467,108

111,095

578,203

Total

By
RMB’ 000
ARET T

949,952

176,513

1,126,465

355,774

58,847

414,621

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 3. DEER(E)
Geographical information WESE
(a) Revenue from external customers (@) FKEINEEFAHA
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBT T

Mainland China alETN] 73 1,071,893 982,422
India = 128,484 37,083
Other countries HEBER 86,306 62,605

1,286,683 1,082,110
The revenue information above is based on the location of PR A B ZERERPEMETE

the customers.

(b) Non-current assets (b) FEREEE
The Group’s operations are substantially based in Mainland AEBRNEETEEREPRRARE K&
China and significantly all of the non-current assets of the BFBEERERDEEETEEFRER
Group are located in Mainland China. Therefore, no further KBE - BIERBEEMNRER#E—FD
analysis of geographical information is presented. MW HRELR o
None of the Group’s customers for both years contributed RRER  BEMAEBHEESTE10%A L
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group. HEP -
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4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 4.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and

trade discounts.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as

follows:

Revenue
Sale of goods

Other income

Bank interest income

Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange differences

Government grants

Others

Gains
Gain on disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gains, net:
Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss

5. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
within five years

Interest on bank advances for discounted
bills

—ZT—T4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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WA~ Bl AR W

WA (REEEER) RHEEEnTIKRESE - &
SPTHR B ZFHE -
REBKRA - AR A RK =S TET :
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-¥F  —TINF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBTT
1,286,683 1,082,110
2,308 477
174 135
265 -
4,475 677
1,807 937
9,029 2,226
54 498
62 1,871
116 2,369
9,145 4,595
% & M
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—®-2F _—TETNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AREFTT
549 4
- 391
549 395
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBiATEF

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ ANER B A BR B BT E A Ty A B (REA) T 5

(crediting): FIBIEETE
Group
rEME
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETAF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B 5 AR T ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 902,667 750,454
Depreciation e 14 24,742 24,610
Impairment of property, plant and Y% - BE R
equipment VERI=N SR 14 - 1,187
Recognition of land use rights* - b 5P R RERE R 15 1,041 1,694
Research and development costs: 35 R R B A A
Amortisation of intangible assets** BT & B 17 1,061 1,163
Current year expenditure REFZH 27,088 22,333
28,149 23,496
Minimum lease payments under KL T 2 &IK
operating leases: e
Buildings BgF 1,579 1,750
Auditors’ remuneration % EED B & 1,100 1,000
Employee benefit expense (including EBEHFHZ
directors’ remuneration (note 7)): (BIEEEME (MFF7)) :
Wages and salaries TERTE® 69,523 64,222
Equity-settled share option LA B 1 32 -1 &Y
expense BB R R 2 187 325
Retirement benefits RIKAE A 9 6,701 6,580
Accommodation benefits (==l 9 2,718 2,603
Other benefits H At 12 7 10,629 9,435
89,758 83,165
Foreign exchange differences, net fE N Z% - 55 (265) 108
Impairment of trade receivables EWE 5 5B R E (190) 1,871
Write-down of inventories to net GFEMRETER
realisable value HE 19 1,524 1,548
Impairment of intangible assets EmREERERRE 17 - 200
Fair value gains, net: N ERRFRE
Equity investments at fair value FEREBERAARE
through profit or loss HER 2 R & (62) (1,871)
Bank interest income ERIT A B WA (2,308) (477)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment REEHEENERE 144 1,002
Gain on disposal of equity investments HEFRBRIUARE
at fair value through profit or loss PIAR 2 IR AN 1E & Wz (54) (498)
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont’d) 6. BRBADER (&)
* The recognition of land use rights for the year is included in * FAR T FEREERSAGRERERO1T
“Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated income HEMR] -
statement.
** The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included > FRNEFEE#REGT ARS KGR EM
in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated income BR]-
statement.
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. BEMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the B FTEBIREED G E161EFTIRE
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies FRNMESSOT :

Ordinance, is as follows:

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

Fees we 610 571
Other emoluments: H b 7 B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMNEWEF 1,996 2,004
Equity-settled share option expense LA BR 48 =2 1+ B9 B AR B =2 5 84
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIHE K 52 52
2,053 2,140
2,663 2,711
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during REEBIFATESHHRESDOT ¢
the year were as follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETRF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR ARETT

Mr. Pan Xue Tian WEEEE 124 106
Mr. Choi Tat Ying Jacky BEoEH A 124 106
Mr. Sik Siu Kwan Bk o A& 62 106
Mr. Lo Tung Sing Tony BRIELE 33 -
343 318
There were no other emoluments payable to the AEEYEBNBIFHTESTNE M
independent non-executive directors during the year (2009: e (ZFThFE: &) -
Nil).
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 7. EEME(E)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director (b) BITEER—BHFHITES
Salaries, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme
in kind expense contributions Total
Fees ¢ 2l UREIXNSH 1K€ remuneration

e RENEN BREMEX SRR kAt
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR AR®TRT ARETR AR®TR AR%TxR

2010 —E-ZF
Executive directors: HITES
Ms. Li Kei Ling THBLL 42 397 - 13 452
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERIE R A& 42 397 - 13 452
Mr. Li Tung Ming SREA%E 42 397 - 13 452
Mr. Gao Yi BREE 42 805 5 13 865
168 1,996 5 52 2,221
Non-executive director: FWITES:
Mr. Leung Hong Man ZERRESE 99 - - - 99
267 1,996 5 52 2,320
2009 —EEAF
Executive directors: HITES:
Ms. Li Kei Ling THERLT 42 402 - 13 457
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RRRIB LA 42 402 = 13 457
Mr. Li Tung Ming L3y 42 402 - 13 457
Mr. Gao Vi mRELE 42 798 84 13 937
168 2,004 84 52 2,308
Non-executive director: FHITES:
Mr. Leung Hong Man Z2REREE 85 - = = 85
253 2,004 84 52 2,393
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAREEENEXREREEMNNE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B & B o
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2009: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2009: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the
year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & EMNEYREF
Equity-settled share option expense LA B e =2 5T B0 B PR e ) <2
Pension scheme contributions BRIKEETEIH R

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T

During the year, no share option was granted to any
non-director, highest paid employee in respect of his services to
the Group.

Notes to Financial Statements
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TfuESHFEE

FRAANGRSHFEERE_M(ZTTAF:
“f)EE - EMESFBEN EXHET - 88T
SH(ZBBNF =) kEFHRSFEER
FANHFHMET :

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR ARETT

1,742 1,753
3 52

33 34
1,778 1,839

e SBENT N ERNIEEE RS FIE
TITHAEMT :

Number of employees

HEAH
2010 2009
—g2-®F —TTAF
3 3

FR - BEFEEAESHEEREASAE
% AR 75 1 JE 4% T B AR A o
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In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), the Company, Dawnrays
International Company Limited and Dawnrays Pharma (Hong
Kong) Limited have participated in the MPF Scheme, a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee,
to provide retirement benefits to its Hong Kong employees.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme are made in accordance with
the statutory limits prescribed by the MPF Ordinance.

As stipulated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
state regulations, the Mainland China Subsidiaries participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme. All employees are
entitled to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of the geographical area of their
last employment at their retirement date. The Mainland China
Subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the local
social security bureau at 20% to 22% (2009: 20% to 22%) of the
previous year’s average basic salary amount of the geographical
area where the employees are employed by the Mainland China
Subsidiaries.

The Group has no further obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions as set out above.

According to relevant rules and regulations of the PRC, the
Mainland China Subsidiaries and their employees are each
required to make contributions to an accommodation fund at
8% to 10% (2009: 7% to 12%) of the salaries and wages of the
employees which is administered by the Public Accumulation
Funds Administration Centre. There is no further obligation
on the part of the Group except for such contributions to the
accommodation fund.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no significant obligation
apart from the contributions as stated above.
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T

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 are:

Current income tax BRI EP
Current income tax charge EHMERH T
Adjustments in respect of current EHRTFEEH
income tax in previous years Fr {5 %1 58 2
Deferred income tax (note 29) BT IE (H7729)
Total tax charge for the year REEHIBL HBE

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law which is
enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on
profits, income, gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company
or its operations. The undertaking for the Company is for a period
of 20 years from 8 October 2002. Accordingly, the Company is
not subject to tax.

The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”)
is not subject to income tax, as such subsidiary does not have a
place of business (other than a registered office only) or carry out
any business in the BVI.

The Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to a statutory corporate
income tax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) under the income tax
rules and regulations of Hong Kong. No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made as the Group had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2009: Nil).

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law with effective
from 1 January 2008, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are all
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income.

On 21 October 2008, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical”) was qualified as a
High-New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”) of Jiangsu Province.
As a result, Suzhou Dawnrays Pharmaceutical is entitled to
a concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for three years
commencing 1 January 2008.

TF  ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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HE_ T ZTEN_ZTTHhFE+_A=1+—H
LFEAMERIHMEBAKIBL T ¢

Group

AR
2010 2009
—g-8F  —TIAF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT
35,612 22,512
(1,192) 246
7,621 10,361
42,041 33,119

REFASEERERRE (—NANNFETAR)
FEolk - ARREESEESRITRBERE :
FMERELEEREARAHEEBEH SR
Ao YA R IR AR o BN R AR AR
H-ZZ-F+ANBRAER=TF - At
RRARHAR

REBHER BB MM E R R EAY
MAEH  AZEMBRARRNAEBHEA TS
I #5254 B (M SE IR O BB RR ON) G &
Al 575 e

REBFBOMEBHRANERD - FEKERA
BIREEFLEMERE165% (ZFFNEF
16.6%) #H - AR AEBRAFEEFT AL
BELERDGEN  BAEREBFFHEL
BECTETNF E) -

BER-STN\F—A— BRAERNTECE
FiaBUA  FEAENBARARLSGER
Bl A B926% 715 B4 SR B8 -

REZZBENFTA+—H  HFMNRmRES
BRAR ([#RMIRIGHEE ) REULEE = 5
¥ ((RFRMhE]) E% - Bt &MNRR
HEERE _ZTT\F-H - HEN=FAZ
X16%MEBAFHEK
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All other subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to the
corporate income tax rate of 25% in 2010.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rates to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

TREAENAEEMHBARR T —FFA
BN TR R BMBEMEM o

RIFHBEDEPTBTE - 1P BIRRER LRSI
BRECEMIBREESIRNERS @ AR
10%M B RBURIEMB - ZREB —FTTNF
—A—BRAY WEAR-_FTLF+_A
=+ BRNBN - WPBEAREEIIHREE
PRERDEER E R BT - R HRARKE
ETEFNRL R o REBHE AT E S5% © FEI
B-ZTN\F-H-HE AEEERETH
R B2 B SZ H B I8 22 ] P EE AE B B A T o0 B O A
BRETBKRERRNER -

7 PR DA B 0 Al g 1) S DA 25 2% 5] K LK AR 4 B 88
RAEMEEBEREEER K+ E 2 HIE
XHEABEREREXAEZHBATHEER - UK

Accounting profit before income tax

At the PRC’ s statutory income
tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%)

Tax effect of profits entitled to
tax concession or lower tax rate
enacted by local authority

Tax credit for purchase of domestic
equipment

Effect of withholding tax on the
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries

Adjustments in respect of current income
tax of previous years

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

At the effective income tax rate of 20.13%
(2009: 21.87%)

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  SRIn&4 (1%A%)

BAREREETRREZHWERNT ¢
Group
KEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARET T
BR FTS 7 AT & 5105 7 208,879 151,463
B BEE TS T E25%
—ZEZTNF  25%) 52,220 37,866
A ZHIAE R G E
BAETEREB R
mB e (17,483) (15,709)
BEREERITER
- (562)
REEFBEMBARZ
A] 5 B A 2 TE 72 £
7,679 10,675
ERBEFEEHMEHR 2
Bk (1,192) 246
DGR 53 771 578
RIERBIAEE 745 649
FI A AR E AT B IR ES 18 (699) (624)
ZE R ATE B %E20.13%
(ZEZTNF : 21.87%) 42,041 33,119
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12.

13.
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11.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2010 includes a profit of
RMB47,377,000 (2009: RMB40,039,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company (note 32(b)).
DIVIDENDS
Interim — HK$0.020 (2009: HK$0.018) per ~ FHIAR & :
ordinary share & @ A A #0.0207T

(ZZEZT N4 : B¥0.0187T)

Proposed final - HK$0.078 BIERARHERES

(2009: HK$0.050) per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
793,038,436 (2009: 782,344,219) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

FEBRKE¥0.0787T
—ETNF : FE¥0.0507T)

13.
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B IS ¥R AR B

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

FRAERABMGEEF

HE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=+—HILXAEEFA
AEEE ABIEGEERNTEEEEARRRME
R R A A R #47,377,0000T (= F
ZhF : AR¥40,039,0007T) (M7E32(b)) °

R E
Company
KA TF

2010 2009

—2-2F  —TITNF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR TR ARETTT

13,726 12,452

52,472 34,769

66,198 47,221
FRZEARHARERFARRIRRNIRR B S

REEB -

BRAAEERESKAEARGLGERAR

BREARFZEGARERARESZAA
BEAFEZFRFNEBTEBRBRBNDZ
DN S 15 j% 81793,033,4360% (— BT S 4 -
782,344 2190%) 5T & o

BErERANRRIARERARBERFEA
FEAE AN FEE AR AR F A 1T E BBRRN
ZINEF AR - BT E R BB 2 10
BF RS EHE BT EEREARNBNFER
EEITEBRAE - LA REETRIERA
BEERNETARMBRRSERERTHNERE
P 2 I S 1 B B
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(Cont’d)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

Earnings E A

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent

& 15 348 7

Shares % 13

13. BAAEBERESFEABGERERN
(%)

T RBEAESRERBMN R ESRERA
e EE

HAREBRESFEEA

2010 2009
—2-%®F -TIAF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTFE  ARMTR
166,840 118,388

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &t & & & & A2 F BTk B F RN

in issue during the year used in the basic BETEERK
earnings per share calculation hniEF15 &

Effect of dilution — weighted average number £ #3585 £ — fi#E F 15 L@ A%

of ordinary shares: A&
Share options i Ax

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Fi#E S ZEH FAEE 2

adjusted for the effect of dilution

98  DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ~ H38l%5 (288) BRAR
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R EE
2010 2009
—2-8F  —TTNF
Thousands Thousands
F1z iz
793,033 782,344
3,935 4,012
796,968 786,356
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T

Cost:

As at 1 January 2009

Additions

Transferred from construction
in progress (note 16)

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Additions

Transferred from construction
in progress (note 16)

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2010

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

As at 1 January 2009

Depreciation provided
for the year

Impairment

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Depreciation provided
for the year

Disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2010

Net book value:
As at 31 December 2010

As at 31 December 2009

TH#  ANNUAL REPORT 2010

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

Group
PN |
Machinery
and other
equipment Office Motor
Buildings HER equipment vehicles Total
BF Hin ks WAERE AE k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®TRE AR¥Tr AR¥Tx AR%®Tx
B
RZZETNF—A—H 116,608 225,909 8,534 10,676 361,727
NE 246 5,317 501 755 6,819
T TRER (:E16)
5,142 18,257 285 = 23,684
& (94) (10,118) (1,307) (691) (12,210)
[ 5% - - ) - (1)
R-ZEZEAE+=-A=+—-H
k—ZE-Z5—-F—H 121,902 239,365 8,012 10,740 380,019
NE = 5,143 701 1,000 6,844
R IZERE (iE16)
12,487 26,884 233 426 40,030
HeE (2,466) (2,700) (640) (1,008) (6,814)
B 58 B - - (21) - 21)
R-ZE-ZF
+=A=+-8 131,923 268,692 8,285 11,158 420,058
BN MERFE !
RZZETNE—HA—H 23,502 76,694 5,539 7,057 112,792
FRITERE
5,698 16,779 909 1,224 24,610
A = 1,137 = = 1,137
& 39) (7,350) (770) (546) (8,705)
[E X A% = - (1) = )
R-ZBEZh&E
+=A=+—-H
E-EZ-ZF-H—H 29,161 87,260 5,677 7,735 129,833
FRITERE
5,774 17,048 767 1,153 24,742
HE (705) (1,724) (577) (907) (3,913)
bE X AR - - (20) = (20)
R-—Z-Zf+-A=+—-H 34,230 102,584 5,847 7,981 150,642
IR E
R-Z-Zf+-A=+—-H 97,693 166,108 2,438 3,177 269,416
R-ZEZEAF+=-A=1+—AH 92,741 152,105 2,335 3,005 250,186

RREA () BMRAE DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 14. M¥ - - BERSEE(E)

Company
IRAF]
Office
equipment
WAERME
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
Cost: AR
As at 1 January 2009 RZZEThE—H—H 611
Exchange realignment i W A% (1)
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZEZREFE+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2010 kK=—Z2—-=Z5—H—H 610
Exchange realignment P 5, 58 B (21)
As at 31 December 2010 R-EB-ZFF+=-HA=t+—H 589
Accumulated depreciation ZEiFIFEREE :
and impairment:
As at 1 January 2009 RZZEZhE—HA—H 599
Depreciation provided FRFTERE
for the year 8
Exchange realignment Rz )
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZEZRE+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2010 kR=Z2-ZF—-—H—H 606
Depreciation provided FRAMERE
for the year 3
Exchange realignment P 5, 58 B (20)
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZE—-Z2F+=-HA=+—H 589
Net book value: BREFEME
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZB-ZFF+=-H=+—H -
As at 31 December 2009 R=ZBEAF+=A=+—H 4
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15. LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid land lease

Notes to Financial Statements

B IS ¥R AR B

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

15, T fE &

REEZ T fEMREERGEERNBN 21

payments under operating leases and their carrying amounts are HEFRKERBMESTAT -

analysed as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January
Additions
Recognised during the year

Carrying amount at 31 December

The land use rights of the Group are situated in Mainland China
and are held under a medium term lease.

16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

As at 1 January

Additions

Transferred to property, plant and
equipment (note 14)

As at 31 December

—ZT—T4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR ARETT

R—A—HEEE 47,462 23,078
RNE - 26,078
FRNHER (1,041) (1,694)
R+-_A=+—HBHREE 46,421 47,462

REBFA 2 L E BB BEARELIZT

HHEOFEE -
16. EEIRE
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—®-2F —TINF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR ARETT

Rn—HA—H 85,699 53,033
RE 71,361 56,350
HAYE  BEREE

(BtzE14) (40,030) (23,684)
R+=—A=+—8H 117,030 85,699

B (1A8) AMRZAF] DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 101
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BEEE
Group
3-3
2010 2009
ZB-BF —ZTNE
Deferred
Deferred development
development costs
costs Software Others Total B Software Others Total
BERERE B4 it BE FEKA s Hif &%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRE ARMTR ARMTR ARETR AR%TR ARETT ARMTR ARETR

Cost: B

As at 1 January m—A—H 25,571 2,054 588 28,213 23,150 1,745 588 25,483
Additions NE 525 94 - 619 2,421 309 - 2,730
As at 31 December R+=A=1+-H 26,096 2,148 588 28,832 25,571 2,054 588 28,213

Accumulated 2 BERAE

amortisation and

impairment:
As at 1 January itz = 11,782 512 234 12,528 10,419 316 117 10,852
Amortisation EREH

provided for

the year 1,061 212 117 1,390 1,163 196 17 1,476
Impairment during £ RAE

the year - - - - 200 - - 200
As at 31 December R+-F=1-H 12,843 724 351 13,918 11,782 512 234 12,528

Net book value: FEFE:
As at 31 December R+=B=1+-H 13,253 1,424 237 14,914 13,789 1,542 354 15,685

As at 1 January R-A-8 13,789 1,542 354 15,685 12,731 1,429 471 14,631
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T

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

LMD - TRA
P& Ust Bt /8§ 1 ) 5RIR

The amounts due from subsidiaries of RMB203,031,000 (2009:
RMB204,604,000) are non-interest-bearing which, although
technically repayable under the original terms of the transactions
giving rise thereto, have been deferred for a longer term and are
therefore classified as non-current.

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

DNEERE

Directly held

EERS

Dawnrays International
Company Limited

RimBIR AR A A

Indirectly held

BERE

Dawnrays International
Company Limited

R B AR B R A A

Suzhou Dawnrays
Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. *

M RIS EGRAE "

T4 ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
MR

oF it B2 8 S it B

British
Virgin Islands
REBERRES

Hong Kong
B

Mainland China
N

Nominal value
of issued share/
paid-up capital
BE#1T/
EHERAK

Us$100
1003 7T

HK$500,000
500,000/ 7T

US$45,000,000
45,000,000% 7T

31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

Company
KAFE

2010 2009
—E-BF  -TLAF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®BT T ARETF T
80,119 82,901
203,031 204,604
283,150 287,505

JiE UG B BB A B 70 IE A R #5203,031,0007T (=&
THE : ARM204,604,0007T) AFHF B H
Htr o AR EMS  ZSEBAREER
SRBIEHAEEE  BEERERE - Bt
PERIERBEH -

MBARFBOT :

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NN
BREBSL

Principal activities

FEER

100% Investment holding

BREEK

100% Investment holding and
sale of pharmaceutical
products

AR K

HE B B E m

100% Manufacture and
sale of pharmaceutical
products

ERHEBEEM

RREA (1) BMRAE DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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18. RMB R AR ()

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

Nominal value
of issued share/
paid-up capital

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

Name EMRL, BT KD T EN Principal activities

AR BB S R B ERRBRA REF DL FEXEK

Indirectly held

BEEE

Su Zhou Dawnrays Mainland China US$6,000,000 100% Manufacture and
Pharmaceutical Science B K B 6,000,000% 7T sale of pharmaceutical
and Technology Co., Ltd. intermediates
(formerly known as Suzhou B K SHE B SE b )88
Dawnrays Chemical Co., Ltd) *

AR M 3R 3 28 ZE R R B PR A A
(AT & mE N R THERAF])!

Dawnrays Pharma Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% Sale of pharmaceutical
(Hong Kong) Limited BB 500,000/ JT products

Rin# % (B8) AR QA tHE BB Em

Guangdong Dawnrays Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100% Sale of
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. * FREARRE A R#3,000,0007T pharmaceutical

ERRIREXFR AR products

BHE B B E m

Dawnrays (Nantong) Mainland China US$10,000,000 100% Manufacture
Pharmaceutical Science and AR B K B 10,000,0003 7T and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. * pharmaceutical

i (FEiA) B8R intermediates
BRA A BERHEBERHEE

i These subsidiaries were registered under the PRC law as foreign-

owned enterprises.
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19. INVENTORIES 19. FE&
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —TENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBTT
Raw materials (at cost) R B (AR AETE) 36,998 28,197
Work in progress (at cost or net realisable £ % 5 (LA AR sk A & 33 SR (E =18 )
value) 101,055 113,836
Finished goods (at cost or net realisable RIRK G (LABK AN sk A] 3R S B FHE)
value) 43,815 42,313
181,868 184,346
The carrying amount of inventories carried at fair value less costs LARBEREEMEXNAIANTFERAMBER
to sell was RMB4,903,000 (2009: RMB4,370,000). AR #4903,000 (ZEZTNF: ARK
4,370,0007T) °
20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 20. EWE S REERIE
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTThF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR ARETT

Trade receivables e E 5 FIE 236,904 164,236
Impairment E (4,161) (5,232)

232,743 159,004
Notes receivable JE U 2= 5 FR A 266,752 276,304

499,495 435,308
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on BHEE —MREBHZIBI KREB X EIR{E
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance EFREEZERS - METEBERFEEH KA
is normally required. The credit period is generally for a period H=EAH BuEPHURERFERTE - K~5EH
of three months for major customers. Each customer has a BEEREREREWICE  WRAEEEER
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its HAEEEERR =SMAEEEE 2T Bk
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to B HR R R o EER LA _E Pl &2 B A AN 5 B Y LUK
manage credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly BOFEBSRAETRARE AMTESES
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the RHEERE EBUWESEEZHEZXENAH
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number B o

of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade and notes receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables and notes receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, net of provisions, is as
follows:

Trade receivables FEWE 5 5K8
Outstanding balances with ages: REREE D A M R EREE
Within 90 days 90BN
Between 91 and 180 days 91£2180H
Between 181 and 270 days 1812270H
Between 271 and 360 days 271%360H
Over one year —F P
Notes receivables FE W R R SRR
Outstanding balances with ages: ZARER B 1 /Y 18 K BREE ¢
Within 90 days 90H A
Between 91 and 180 days 912180H

106 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED — SI381%5 (128%) BRAT)

20. BEWES RREREA(EF)

MR EBEER  NEESHRNEEE S REEX

HRERE S TT ¢

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F —EThF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T
220,780 153,947
11,921 5,044
23 3
8 —
11 10
232,743 159,004

Group

REE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T
201,730 116,730
65,022 159,574
266,752 276,304

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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31 December 2010 R-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 20. ERESREERE(2Z)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables EWE S RIENREREBEESHWT

are as follows:

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—g-%%  —TIAF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR ARETTT

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 5,232 3,361
Impairment losses recognised B @RREEE - 1,871
Amount written off as uncollectible WsE A Bl 2 &8 (917) -
Impairment losses reversed B #E R EEE (154) =
At 31 December WN+=—A=+—8 4,161 5,232
The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is bt FE U B B SR IE RO R (B BB T BB A A A BR
provided for individually impaired trade receivables with an HBEARK4161,000C (ZEZTNF : AR
aggregate carrying amount before provision of RMB4,161,000 #5,232,0007T) B ERIE BB E Y E 5 F I8
(2009: RMB5,232,000). The individually impaired trade ’® - ZEER BB AERKE 5 5RIE EE A8
receivables relate to customers with financial difficulties. The BRBE2EPAER - AREEW BB ZFEHRT
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements A R @SR E 5 B hnos & i o

over these balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not RN R ENERE S FIERERSTAOT
considered to be impaired is as follows:

Group

REE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR ARETT

Neither past due nor impaired RiE R I I R (B 220,780 153,947
Less than three months past due 0 HA D 7R3 1E A 11,921 5,044
Over three months past due 80 BAGE A LA £ 42 13

232,743 159,004
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a R 36 A % I 4 S5 {8 ¢ FE Uk 2K T T ER A B 3T ER D
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no HENBEYHZETEER -

recent history of default.
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31 December 2010 R-ZT—TF+-A=+—H

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

21.

22.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Group are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

20.

BWESRREREA(E)

780 HAB 30 R OR0 (B A0 B IRIR T B % 2 B AN R (B
HPBREFTFECBNBEYLEFPEH - ERNNE
BE - AEBEERRBARZZERELR
BEE EAREEEXRYEHREREDY M
BRI R R 2B o 285 B I &5t
ZEEMRTRHA TAERRIRBEMER
SRS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. AR BZEREMERRIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
AEH NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF ZIEThF ZEB-TF ZITThF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR®TR ARETT
Prepayments SEENEN 11,051 9,235 187 189
Deposits and other receivables 1% & K £ b & Y kI8 4,779 5,074 - =
15,830 14,309 187 189
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. FiEEARGH R ERHE -
EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. ERBEHULAARBIRZEAKE
PROFIT OR LOSS
Group Company
rEE N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%F ~—TTNF -B-BF —ITThHF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR AREBTIT AR®TRT ARETTT
Listed equity investments, ETRARE -
at market value: BmE :
Hong Kong a5 6,244 5,814 6,244 5,814

The above equity investments at 31 December 2009 and
2010 were classified as held for trading, and were, upon initial
recognition, designated by the Group as equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss.

108 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  H328l%5 (288) ARAF
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31 December 2010 W-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS

23. RERASEEHYNZRFRITER

Group Company
AEE KAFE
2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-8F —“TTNF ZEBE-ZTF —ITTNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARSTRT AREBTT AR¥TRT ARETTT

Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTEF 200,675 86,450 4,533 3,973
Short-term deposits ISE-EREE N 60,000 - - -
260,675 86,450 4,533 3,973

Less: Restricted bank balances & @ &R {TE M
for bank loans (note 27) 2R H 2 RITFR
(P 7E27) (49,700) - - _

Cash and cash equivalents ReERIBESZEY 210,975 86,450 4,533 3,973

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and short-term deposits of the Group denominated in RMB

RIREHR  AEBREEAEARESNE S MR
174517 B 92 HATE S48 (B A R #5243,754,0007T

—ZT—T4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010

amounted to RMB243,754,000 (2009: RMB64,896,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.

—TTNF : AR¥64,896,0007T) © AREE
WA EREBRAEMER - KM BIEHEH
REESNEE FISE R R AR - EEEMIESTIRE
B ASBEEAESBREITETINEEFRIRIT
BARYE R BABHMEY -

RITE R H) B IR IRE BATF 5RA A R ERER - 22
HERFHBERAF—HE=E@ATSE  RTF
AREBEWIREFRKME + I LA FE R B E
TFRMERRF R - RITEREFAIHRE
TRER - FERENRITH - REMAEEF
EYOREEZROIEARE -
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24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 24. EHESREERE
An aged analysis of the trade payables and notes payables as at RIERARNENE S RENEERIERR D
the end of the reporting period, is as follows: MR -
Group
TEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR ARETT

Outstanding balances with ages: AR B 5 B M R BREE
Within 90 days 90H N 263,360 210,756
Between 91 and 180 days 912180H 159,562 138,366
Between 181 and 270 days 181£270H 3,056 165
Between 271 and 360 days 2712360H 215 153
Over one year —FLE 851 1,015
427,044 350,455
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FET IR TR TR R — MR N+ B BRBR B4
settled on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the trade and o BNEGRERFEBEZRHELEQAE
notes payables approximate to their fair values. HBE -
25. BANK ADVANCES FOR DISCOUNTED BILLS 25. RITMRAREER
Effective Group
interest rEH
rate (%) Maturity 2010 2009
BRI (%) BEA —E-=2F —ETNEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARBTT
Bank advances for Upon expiry
discounted bills of the bills
RITHBERBEBN 6.00% R FIH% 100 5,000
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Notes to Financial Statements

B IS #R R B

31 December 2010 W-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

26. HttENRRAREH

Group Company
rEE /N
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-2F —TTNF ZFE-FF ZTTILF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARBTIT AR®TR ARBTE

Advances from customers T8 U BE 3K 6,241 5,963 - =
Accruals EiRE M 12,601 10,672 652 605
Taxes other than corporate B> ZEATISFLAN
income tax COETRE 5,747 563 - -
Payable for purchases of Mg REF
machinery and construction R FE X
of buildings 37,026 13,948 - -
Other payables H & < 3K 14,884 9,668 352 6
76,499 40,814 1,004 611
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average B ENR IR E R FEY A EEE o
settlement term of six months. The carrying amounts of the other HiERRTERER ZEMERE AR EHE
payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. H o
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 27. ST RBITER
2010
—E—2fF
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity Original Equivalent
BB R E(%) ZH B R HER
HK$’ 000 RMB’ 000
BT T ARET
Group rEE
Current =
Bank loan - unsecured EERMORITER HIBOR*+1.35% 2011 16,000 13,615
Bank loan — unsecured EIXFAIRITE R 1.85% 2011 40,000 34,037
Bank loan - unsecured EIBHARITER HIBOR*+1.50% 2011-2012 4,000 3,404

—ZT—T4F3 ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Cont’d) 27. SHERITER(E)
2009
—ETNF
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity Original Equivalent
B IR H 2= (%) B! R #E HER
HK$’ 000 RMB’ 000

BETT ARETT

Group AEE
Current =
Current portion of long term EERNRARITER
bank loan — unsecured (—FREE M) HIBOR*+1.50% 2010 2,000 1,761
Non-current =
Long term bank loan EEEN RS
- unsecured RITER HIBOR*+1.50% 2011-2012 4,000 3,522

6,000 5,283
* Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate * BEBRITRERS
The carrying amount of the Group’s bank loans approximates to AEEMFEBRTERZEEABEREQREE
its fair value. Ao
As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s bank loans are RZBE—TE+_A=+—H  AEEZHET
guaranteed by corporate guarantee of the Company and some of EXBARRRBOMBABEATER - &
its subsidiaries. On top of the corporate guarantee, a subsidiary HR 756,000,000 T #R 1T E S A S BT B A
of the Group undertook to maintain fixed deposits of not less AEBERNERAREEZBTE2EEENFREAXR
than RMB49,700,000 at the bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary FEM B A RF EHRITESNFERTLRARKE
located in the Mainland China throughout the loan period of 49,700,0007T °
HK$56,000,000 bank loans.

Group

rEE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETAF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTR ARETT

Analysed into: Pal =1
Bank loans repayable: FTEERITERMEE
Within one year or on demand LR —F iR EK 51,056 1,761
In the second year REZF - 1,761
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFZFRFNA - 1,761
51,056 5,283
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28. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 28. BN
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTR ARBTT
At 1 January ®n—H—H 1,120 =
Received during the year BN 15 A9 R T 48 3R 4,475 1,797
Released to the income statement AN (4,475) 677)
Offsetting the carrying amount of R A Y E R REE
the related property (1,120) -
At 31 December R+=—RAR=+—8H - 1,120
29. DEFERRED TAX 29. IEEH IR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FAREHEEERBBZEHMT :

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Provision
BB
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
Group AEE
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—HF—H 892
Deferred tax credited FARGRERFRERZ
to the consolidated EEFRIE (MFEE10)
income statement
during the year (note 10) 314
Deferred tax assets RZEZENF+=_A=+—8H
at 31 December 2009 R=ZZ-TF—-H—H
and 1 January 2010 ZIRERIEE R 1,206
Deferred tax credited FARGERERERZ
to the consolidated EIEFTE (MFFE10)
income statement
during the year (note 10) 58
Deferred tax assets R=ZT—ZTF+=—A=+—H

At 31 December 2010 ZIEER IR E = 1,264
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities

Group
At 1 January 2009
Deferred tax charged
to the consolidated
income statement
during the year (note 10)
Deferred tax paid
during the year

At 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Deferred tax charged
to the consolidated
income statement
during the year (note 10)
At 31 December 2010

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised:

10,000,000,000 (2009: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully paid:

797,044,000 (2009: 786,416,000) ordinary

shares of HK$0.1 each

Equivalent to RMB’ 000

114 DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

29. EERIE (&)

FEERBEEE
Withholding
tax
A
RMB’ 000
AR®T T
AEME
R-_BEZAFE—HF—H _
FERARFERFERIIG ZIEIT
A (MfsE10)
10,675
REEEMNELTH
(4,677)
R_ZETNFEF+_A=+—H
;r=—ZE-ZTF—H—H 5,998
FRARGARSZIRNBR ZIEE
218 (f7E10)
7,679
RZF-FF+_A=1+—"H 13,677
30. 1k &
B’ 2
2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BET T BT T
JETE ¢
R EEO0.178 T A & @A
10,000,000,0000% (—ZEZ N4 :
10,000,000,0000% ) 1,000,000 1,000,000
BERITREE
R EE0. 178 T K @A
797,044,0000% (ZZZF L4 -
786,416,0000% ) 79,704 78,642
EEARETT 84,578 83,649

Rimgny (125 BRAF
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During the year, 10,628,000 share options under the Company’s
share option scheme were exercised. Accordingly, 10,628,000

ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued as a result of

exercise of share options.

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to
the above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is

as follows:

31 December 2010 W-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

FAZERE » 10,628,000 48 & 4 2 7] B8 A A 71
B2 EREDEITE - Eit © 10,628,0008% &
REBEET =22 EBREAZEHEREET
fE 2T

W

2R B RAREBETRARRFERN
RBEAMT

N

Share

Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERITROEE ERITRE B4 aRE B
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BET T BETT BET T
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—HF—H 778,648,000 77,865 52,526 130,391
Share options exercised BT RS AR 7,952,000 795 4,860 5,655
Shares repurchased B E & kG5 (184,000) (18) (115) (133)

At 31 December 2009 and  RZ=TTNF+-A=+—H

1 January 2010 k=—T—ZEF—A—H 786,416,000 78,642 57,271 135,913
Share options exercised BT B AR 10,628,000 1,062 7,256 8,318
At 31 December 2010 R=Z-FF+=A=+-8H 797,044,000 79,704 64,527 144,231

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 31 to the financial statements.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, independent non-executive directors,
employees of the Group and other eligible participants as defined
under the Scheme. The Scheme was adopted on 21 June 2003,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.
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The maximum number of shares currently permitted to be
issued upon the exercise of options under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
upon listing. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible person in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 by each grantee with no other
consideration being payable by the grantee. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during a period commencing on such date on or after the
date on which the option is granted as the Board may determine
in granting the option and expiring at the close of business on
such date as the Board may determine in granting the option but
in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer, provided that the
exercise price shall not be less than the nominal value of the
ordinary shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme

during the year:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2010 W-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H
31. BREE (2)

AT RZ SR EARITENBIRAE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENEF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
MEFLTEE MEFEHTEE
HK$ Number HK$ Number
BT of options BT of options
per share BREZE per share BRESE
BR ’000 Bk ’000
At 1 January R—A—H 0.673 16,428 0.649 24,400
Exercised during the year FRAEIE 0.647 (10,628) 0.599 (7,952)
Expired during the year FRBRMK 0.720 (160) 0.580 (20)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—-H

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$2.156 (2009:
HK$0.898).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2010
—2-%F

0.720 5,640 0.673 16,428
FA - RBERETEANNEFEORER

216568 L (ZZEZNF  0.8988 L)

REEBR - RITEBEREITHREE RTEH
BT :

Exercise price*

Number of options

BRERA
’000

3,680
680
480
800

5,640

TRE"

HK$

BT
per share Exercise period
BR TREH™
0.710 04-04-2008 to 03-04-2013
0.800 10-07-2008 to 09-07-2013
0.740 01-02-2009 to 31-01-2014
0.700 09-12-2009 to 08-12-2014
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 31. BREE (&)

2009
—EENFE
Exercise price*
THREE"
HK$
Number of options BT
B EE R per share Exercise period
’000 Bk FTiE 2R
1,100 0.630 17-11-2005 to 16-11-2010
4,668 0.580 28-12-2005 to 27-12-2010
800 0.720 01-09-2007 to 31-08-2012
7,280 0.710 04-04-2008 to 03-04-2013
780 0.800 10-07-2008 to 09-07-2013
800 0.740 01-02-2009 to 31-01-2014
1,000 0.700 09-12-2009 to 08-12-2014

16,428

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Group’s share capital.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. This value is inherently
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the
limitation of the valuation model used. The following table lists the
inputs to the model:

o ETHARSRBEITARSARERAE IR A
MEUEE  RIBRENTEEATAHRE -

BTUBRAGENRBRENAABIRERTE
Pt E BIAR e — &M EER GG 3
BEERR THBREN RGN - ERARER
REMERNBEREAFERS - BRAEES
FETEND R THEERSE - TRIIHZER
B A BUE

Date of grant AHAH 17/11/2004 28/12/2004  5/5/2005 10/1/2007  4/4/2007 10/7/2007  1/2/2008 9/12/2008
Dividend yield (%) R 5 (%) 6.94 7.53 8.92 6.05 5.87 5.14 5.85 6.27
Expected volatility (%) R E(%) 47 46 47 43 43 43 43 39
Historical volatility (%) BIKE(%) 47 46 47 43 43 43 43 39
Risk-free interest rate (%) EERITHEE(%) 2.76 2.91 2.90 3.70 4,05 4,63 2.20 1,63
Expected life of option (year) ~ BERRIETRHEH (F) 6 6 4 6 6 6 6 6

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past five years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.
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The 10,628,000 share options exercised during the year resulted
in the issue of 10,628,000 ordinary shares of the Company
and new share capital of HK$1,062,800 and share premium
of HK$7,256,000 as further detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 5,640,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 0.71% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 5,640,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company,
additional share capital of HK$564,000 and share premium of
HK$3,508,000 (before share issue expenses).

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 50 to
51 of the financial statements.

(i) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the then consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation as set out in note 1, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the articles of association of the Mainland China
Subsidiaries, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are
each required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax,
as determined in accordance with the PRC generally
accepted accounting principles, to the SSR until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
Mainland China Subsidiaries. Part of the SSR may be
converted to increase the paid-up capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital.

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

31 December 2010 W-ZE—TF+ - A=+—H

&R 17§ #910,628,00017 & A% 7 5| BLA A
&) 8 1710,628,0000% & i A% 15 - 35 hn ¥ Ak 2
1,062,800/% 7T & % 17 & (87,256,000 7T * &
15 # B 75 3R R MO #E30 ©

RImEHR - N2 RRIEZAT214H5,640,000
DHERENARETE BEREBLARARE
BATRR D 490.71% © IRIBA R RIREF R E AL
B BHOESRTERESSI A QA&
5,640,000 5B /N E A% « 1 AN564,0007% TTHY
% A LA B2 B 17 34 {8.3,508,0007% 7T (R 5T A% 15 2%
TRX) -

(a) =~&%H
REERFERAFERBAFENSHE
REBHDHRYBEREFE0EES1HN
RAEREBHERA -

(i) HAEZEE
AEBNFABRBIERBME1TE
MEBEEAEMKENE R R E R
HAREERERANRRSREE ]
BEMBITHOARE KD EENZE
Gl

(i) ZEBHAEZL
R B D BDE R B E QA
WARERE BEMNBARSAA
BRAPBEARETER - BEH R G
MEI0RDEEEZERBRTES -
HEAERRAESED T EME
N AL E A H50% © 7 9 0ETE &
BR N TE E T SR AR AR DA SE 0 AR
A HEEARCRAERE N RERE
& A #925% °

(iii) B 5% B 1#
PE 5K By A T0 AR RC S R H SN
B 1B 2 ] ) B 7 SRR P EE AR HOBE 3
ZFE
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32. RESERVES (Cont’d) 32. RE(E)
(b) Company (b) &AF
Capital Exchange
Share Share redemption fluctuation
premium Contributed option  reserve  reserve Retained
account  surplus  reserve BXK EX profits Total
BRORE HABY BRERE EERE XBRE RKREEN HE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR%TR ARETn AR%Tn ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR
At 1 January 2009 R=ZZnE-HF-A 57,684 100,175 2,622 2,699 (68,320) 77,512 182,372
Profit for the year RERRT 11 - - - - - 40039 40,089
Other comprehensive loss ~ REEHM 2 EEE
for the year:
exchange differences EHEE - - - - (428) - (428)
Total comprehensive income  AFE2ANZEE
for the year - - - - (428) 40,039 39,611
Exercise of share options IfeiE e 31 4,283 = (795) = = = 3,488
Shares repurchased and B Rtk R
cancelled 30 (102) = = 16 = (16) (102)
Dividend on shares issued for ~EENE+-F=1—H
employee share options &1 AESERER
exercised after EIROERE
31 December 2008 - - - - - (17 17
Equity-settled share DA 1 52 5 i R
option arrangements ZH - - 325 = = = 325
Interim 2009 dividend ZETNEREHRE 12 - - - - - (12452) (12,452
Proposed final 2009 diidend  $6k —ZENERARE 12 - - - - - (34,769) (34,769)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENEF-A=T—H
and 1 January 2010 k-E-Z5-A-H 61,865 100175 2152 2715 (58748 70297 178,456
Profit for the year RERRT 11 - - - - - 47311 41317
Other comprehensive loss ~ REEHM 2 HEE
for the year:
exchange differences ERZE - - - - (8,752) - (8,752)
Total comprehensive income  AFE2ANZEE
for the year - - - - (8,752) 47,377 38,625
Exercise of share options e e 31 6,347 = (1,275) = - = 5,072
Dividend on shares issued for —EZAF+-A=F+—H#
employee share options IERESBRERET
exercised after Bl
31 December 2009 - - - - - 82 82)
Equity-settled share DARR B T 0 B i
option arrangements T - - 187 - - - 187
Interim 2010 dividend —E-SEREKRE 12 - - - - - (13726)  (13,726)
Proposed final 2010 dividend #E=Z—ZERBRE 12 - - - - - (52472)  (52,472)
At 31 December 2010 R-2-Z%+-A=t-H 68,212 100,175 1,064 2,715 (67,500) 51,394 156,060
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32. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(b) Company (Cont’d)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the then consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
referred to in note 32(a), over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the issued capital
account and the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

Notes to Financial Statements
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32. k& (&)

(b) &ATH (&

A BB B B8 A0 Y 5E32(a) Pt $5 AR
BEEEAMKBHBEARERNGS
BEFEBRAARRRBEREHMEEM
BT AR R A EE R BB 1D ©

BhEREERCRBERRITEEBR
RO AARE HE-TERENT KR
KM F2AUBN I NN ZHE A BER
N BERBREETER  HBEEE
EEBRITRARRRMEER  (EE6H
BREHRKIUER - HBBEREER
73 7l o
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets

HBEE

Trade and notes receivables
Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

MBAE

ERESREERA
AN RER
AbRURZHBEE

BRBEUAAESIRS
RARE
AeRREEEY

Trade and notes payables
Financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals

. BERES cHMBEITA

Group
158
2010 2009
“E-8F ZEINE
Equity Equity
Investments Investments
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
or loss Loans and or loss Loans and
FBBHEN  receivables BEBRD receivables
RAES EXR Total DA B Bk Total
RZRARE FEWFE B8  EHRARE R &%
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT
- 499,495 499,495 - 435,308 435,308
- 4,779 4,779 - 5,074 5,074
6,244 - 6,244 5814 - 5814
- 260,675 260,675 - 86,450 86,450
6,244 764,949 771,193 5814 526,832 532,646
2010 2009
—E-EF —EThF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
RBERATE REEKATE
ZHBAaE ZHBEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TR ARETT
R85 RERFKIEA 427,044 350,455
S A E At B TR
RERERZUMBEE 57,657 25,299
484,701 375,754
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont’d)

Financial assets

HBEE

Trade and notes receivables
Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

34.
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33. REAB D ZHMBITA(E)
Company
|
2010 2009
“E-8F ZETNE
Equity Equity
investments investments
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
or loss Loans and or loss Loans and
FEBBHEMN  receivables BEBRD receivables
RARES EXR Total DA B Bk Total
RZRARE FEWFE B8 EHRARE R &%
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT
ERESRRENE - - - - - -
SARNR Be Rk
BN B EE
BRBRNAAEIER
LBARE 6,244 - 6,244 5,814 - 5,814
ReRREZEN - 4,533 4,533 - 3,073 3,973
6,244 4,533 10,777 5814 3,978 9,787
3. DRAEERER

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

fair values measured based on quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for

which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or

Level 1:

liabilities
Level 2:

indirectly
Level 3:

fair values measured based on valuation techniques

for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs)
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34. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company held the
following financial instruments measured at fair value:

TZA=+—R AEERAER
RERAABFENTIMBETA

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2010: R-BE—FFf - H=+—HEIAL EFEH
EE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—8 - EZE &t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R AR®T AR®T R AR®T T
Equity investments at fair value BBBRUDALETIR
through profit or loss ZRAZE 6,244 = = 6,244
During the year ended 31 December 2010, there were no HE-ZT - ZF+-_A=+—HIEFE"

transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expenses are
denominated in a different currency from the Group’s functional
currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.
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Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Currently, the PRC government imposes control over foreign
currencies. RMB, the official currency in the PRC, is not freely
convertible. Enterprises operating in the PRC can enter into
exchange transactions through the People’s Bank of China or
other authorised financial institutions. Payments for imported
materials or services and remittance of earnings outside of the
PRC are subject to the availability of foreign currencies which
depends on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the
enterprises, or must be arranged through the People’s Bank
of China or other authorised financial institutions. Approval for
exchanges at the People’s Bank of China or other authorised
financial institutions is granted to enterprises in the PRC for valid
reasons such as purchases of imported materials and remittance
of earnings. While conversion of RMB to Hong Kong dollars or
other foreign currencies can generally be effected at the People’s
Bank of China or other authorised financial institutions, there is
no guarantee that it can be effected at all times.

The Group does not have any significant investment outside
of Mainland China. However, the Group has transactional
currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales of the
Group’s subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the
subsidiaries’ functional currency. Approximately 16.69% of the
Group’s sales for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
9%) are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the subsidiaries. Upon receipt of currency other than
the functional currency, the subsidiaries sells them to the banks
immediately.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

TFH  ANNUAL REPORT 2010

31 December 2010 R-ZT—TF+_-_A=+—H

SNEE BB (42)

BAl PEABRMFDERNMNEES - FEEHE
BMARBTIBHLR RABEKE 2B
i B A RIRIT S M52 7] © B RS 1L = A0
BR 5 o T DR KRE 2 EE &G EF
P 1 AR B 38 i [ 35 2 SN (R R BURERR &+ 3
RBEEDINETEZ R - S MBF BT EH
ARBITHE AR AT & BB EL ZHE - R
HEEE s C¥EEERDERT  MEEAED

FR RE AR - AR ER P EARET
NEMRA] S REEET IR  c AARKH

%%E%E@%%—&TE$IAEﬁHYE
fhER ] & B ETT  BEARER T ARE
I REHETT o

AEERFEREANL BEMEAKRE - A
- AEBEDEHRZEERR - AEEREK
BAREE R BEAENBARIARL SR

MONC BEEEITZHE BE_FT—FTF+=
A=+—BLLFE FAEEN16.69% HE
(ZZEZNF - 9%) Th AR E B &) rh B K Fek B
BRBMINGEEE AN E¥EHE - RIREITH
BEEASN 2 B8R - NEBE R BREENE
AR BZEERE TRITALIERINE

' -

E
N

A

TRIFEMAEMAIZRRERFTE ZIFN
T AEENRBEAENEINEERHRAE

RZ2FOHRE (HREBEEREBENA
REZH) -

RREA (1) BMRAE DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED



31 December 2010 W-ZE—TF+-A=+—H

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

2010 —E-2F

If RMB strengthens against United MAR R ETHE
States dollar

If RMB weakens against United i AR HETHRE
States dollar

2009 —ZETAF

If RMB strengthens against United MAR S ETHE
States dollar

If RMB weakens against United MAR¥EHETRE

States dollar

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivables and balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debt is not
significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets
of the Group, which comprise cash and short-term deposits,
other receivables and equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group.

DAWNRAYS PHARMACEUTICAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ~ &% (330%) BRAR]
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Increase/decrease in Effect on profit

foreign currency rate before tax
NS EE R HERBLAY

L@ T B2 B

RMB’000

ARBT T

+5% (1 05660)

-5% 10,660

Increase/decrease in  Effect on profit

foreign currency rate before tax
HINEES [EE 3 HIBR T AT
LB TE ENZRE
RMB’ 000
ARBTT
+5% (5,032)
-5% 5,032
FERR
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3B. cREAREEEEREE(£)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d) EERE(E)
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to FEAEBREREZERFMELEEZERRD
credit risk arising from trade receivables is disclosed in note 20 to w2 EEER T E R ® KM 520 o

the financial statements.

Liquidity risk REE SRR

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a AEBEERARALEERBESFETA &
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity REZSHRORAR W TAESZEEMKET
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade ARMBEE (MEKRE S RN BEE A
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations. RREBREEBHERARESRE -

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at REBERES QRBIRA KRG E AR W®E R
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual HaE s BAAGMmAT

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group

r&

2010

—2-2%%
3 to less than
Less than 12 months 1to5 Over

On demand 3 months =ZEDR years 5 years Total
REX 2LR=@A +=A -Z1f EENE @t

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR ARTR AR®TR ARETR

Bank advances for RITHREZEBR
discounted bills } - 100 - - - 100
Interest-bearing bank loans 5t 8 R1TE R - - 51,056 - - 51,056
Trade and notes payables  ENE 5k EHE A 6,488 254,838 165,718 - - 427,044
Other payables HiER R 57,657 - - - - 57,657
64,145 254,938 216,774 - - 535,857
2009
“TETNF
3 1o less than
Less than 12 months 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months ZELR years 5 years Total
RER  SR=EA +=f@R —E0fF AFUE @i

RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRE AREBTT ARBTLT ARMTR ARBTT ARET:R

Bank advances for RITHRZEBR
discounted bills - 5,000 - - - 5,000
Interest-bearing bank loans 5 B4R 1T E = = 1,761 3,522 = 5,283
Trade and notes payables BN E 5 kZEZE 641 224,299 125,515 = = 350,455
Other payables Hi R 23,870 = = = = 23,870
24,511 229,299 127,276 3,622 - 384,608
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Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The net debt
includes, bank advances for discounted bills, trade and notes
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
loans, government grants less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits. Capital includes equity attributable to
the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

BEREH
AEBEERAEANEEERRREARENR
BREENRAEFRBENEALE  UER
EBERIEABRRER -

AR E B EEOER SR (R A AR
HEEREE - ARFAREALLE A%
B RELTRENRENE EEAA
FRERBITHRG - NEE-B—BF =
A=+—AR-BEAF+-A=+—Rit%F
R AWARERNEE  KERBRLE
JEHME R B -

AEERBERNBBELREREEARIFTR - M
BERBBLERTNFRERABERINFREZ
BANAE - FEELRBRRTHRZBEEN K
NEZREEFIR  HMENK FHREM -
SRRRTERMBTER  XYHERELRE
ZEVMZBHRITFER - EXBEFRAHE
BAEMERER NREHRCERB B EN
™

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals

Bank advances for discounted bills

Interest-bearing bank loans

Government grants

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposits

Net debt

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

BN E S kRIERA

Hi KR FEREE R

RITREBRZREBK

AFERITER

BT 3K

o BE RREFEY
MR B R1THFR

FRE

SRAHEB AREED

BEARFRE

BEXRBELE
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Group

AEE
2010 2009
—g-%8%  —TINF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARBETF T
427,044 350,455
76,499 40,814
100 5,000
51,056 5,283
- 1,120
(260,675) (86,450)
294,024 316,222
834,954 711,289
1,128,978 1,027,511
26% 31%
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36. COMMITMENTS 36. #H&iE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHEEEIE

The Group leases certain of its office properties under AEERBELCEHELRARE THA
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are W - MERENETEHRN T —ERF
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years. 2 e
At 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company HE_ZT—ZF+-_A=+—H ~5E
had total future minimum lease rentals payable under RARBBBAAIHHELCEHORBE
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: RRENHEAEHIBLBEMOT

Group Company

rEE P NN

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-TF -—TTNF -T-BF —ZTINF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARETT ARMTT ARKTE

Within one year —F R 1,764 1,941 - =
After one year but no more —F & ZEF
than five years ZRAF 1,305 2,991 - =
3,069 4,932 - —
(b) Capital commitments (b) EREIE
Group Company
AEH KAFE
2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-2F —ZTTNF ZEB-ZTF —"ITTNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARSTRT ARETT AR¥TRT ARETT

Contracted, but not BET4) - (BRIEREE

provided for:

Plant and machinery [5R5 Ko e 23 42,270 33,940 - =
Authorised, but not BEEE  BRETA

contracted for:

Plant and machinery W= N i B 231,410 120,470 - =

273,680 154,410 - =
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 37. BERZRS

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short-term employee benefits H b 52 B B f& Fl

Post-employment benefits RIRIEAE A

Share-based payments AR BER B F 75

Total compensation paid to key FEEEAER
management personnel B 4258

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included in note
7 to the financial statements.

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 14 March 2011.
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AEBETREEAESHS -
2010 2009
—E2-FF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARETT
3,671 3,793
69 72
5 89
3,745 3,954
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out

below.

RESULTS

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

—Z—Z4# ANNUAL REPORT 2010

ES
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EH

L ONE &
HERDHEM
TTHE M

H A&
MBER

BR B A1 28 A
PS¢

REEERF

AT & IAEN :
BREHEEA
FEIE AR

BEE BfER
RS

HEE
mefE
RS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—RHALEE

ATAAEERNBERBAVBRFECEE  BE -
BEMFERESHME  HHRBEEEAMEER
B TS ER K

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-F2F ZZIFTITNF ZTENF ZTT+F ZTTRF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR AREFTRT AREFTT AREBETT AREBTRT
1,286,683 1,082,110 947,710 919,945 788,797
(910,526) (754,058) (691,047) (680,443) (604,788)
376,157 328,052 256,663 239,502 184,009
9,145 4,595 5,072 4,320 2,955
(95,673) (101,206) (79,395) (69,218) (53,669)
(48,884) (47,575) (43,796) (41,117) (36,400)
(31,317) (32,008) (22,485) (21,950) (26,590)
(549) (395) (343) - (976)
208,879 151,463 115,716 111,537 69,329
(42,041) (33,119) (13,585) (10,380) (3,451)
166,838 118,344 102,131 101,157 65,878
166,840 118,388 102,037 101,072 65,781
@) (44) 94 85 97
166,838 118,344 102,131 101,157 65,878
1,413,157 1,126,465 975,215 851,398 758,337
(578,203) (414,621) (346,002) (272,392) (245,290)
- (555) (672) (654) (790)
834,954 711,289 628,541 578,352 512,257
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Information for shareholders

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 4 May 2011 to Friday, 6 May 2011 (both days inclusive)
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered and
effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend and be entitled
to attend and vote at the 2011 AGM, all transfers of shares of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the
appropriate share transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:00p.m. on
Tuesday, 3 May 2011.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
2010 AGM 7 May 2010

Announcement of 2010 interim results 27 August 2010

Announcement of 2010 annual results 14 March 2011

2011 AGM 6 May 2011

DIVIDENDS
2010 Interim dividend HK$0.020 per share

Payment date for 2010 interim dividend 21 September 2010

Proposed 2010 final dividend HK$0.078 per share

Ex-dividend date for 2010 final dividend 29 April 2011
Book closing dates for 2010 final dividend 4-6 May 2011
Payment date for proposed 2010 final dividend on or about

25 May 2011
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Suites 3212-13, Shell Tower, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
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22 Tianling Road, Wuzhong Economic Development District, Suzhou, Jiangsu, PRC.
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www. dawnrays.com
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